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VISION STATEMENT

With help and involvement of all its Stakeholders to make Alpha
one of the leading General Insurance Company of the Country with
a vibrant marketing force and efficient and responsive office staff,
so as to provide best quality services to its policyholders.

MISSION STATEMENT
To work zealously towards attaining these objectives and be able to

compete in the open market by developing a vibrant field force and
efficient and responsive office staff.

RATING

JCR-VIS has assigned Insurers Financial Strength rating 'A' with
stable outlook to Alpha Insurance.

05




lipha
Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

OUR QUALITY POLICY

We are committed to provide best quality service to
our valued policyholders to their satisfaction by
assessing their risk need, tailoring product to their
requirements and by consistent efforts to reduce time
for settlement of claims. We believe that proper
assessment of risks of our clients and prompt
settlement of claims are the key to our Company's

growth.

To comply with and continuously improve the

effectiveness of our Quality Management System.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that 66th Annual General Meeting of Alpha Insurance Company Limited will
be held on Thursday, May 31, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. at the Company's Head Office, 4th Floor, Building No.
1-B, State Life Square, I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To confirm the minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting held on Monday, May 29, 2017.

2. To receive, consider and adopt Directors' report (English and Urdu) and Audited Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017 together with the Auditors' report thereon.

3. To appoint the auditors for the year 2018 and fix their remuneration.
4. Any other matter with the permission of the Chair.

By Orders of the Board
fre

M Ayaz Ghori
Karachi: May 10, 2018 Company Secretary

Notes:

1. The share transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from May 20, 2018 to May 30, 2018
(both days inclusive)

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as proxy to
attend and vote in the meeting.

3. The instrument appointing a proxy must be received at the Head Office of the Company at 4th
Floor, Building No. 1-B, State Life Square, I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi not later than 48 hours
before the time appointed for the Meeting. A member shall not be entitled to appoint more than
one proxy. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxy are
deposited by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxies shall be rendered invalid.

4. Change of address, if any, should be notified immediately to the Company at 4th Floor, Building
No. 1-B, State Life Square, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.
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Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 and
Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

Name of company: Alpha Insurance Company Limited

For the year ended: 31 December 2017

1. This statement is being presented to comply with the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance)
Rules, 2013 and the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 (CCG Insurer) (hereinafter
called "the Codes") issued for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby
a public sector company is managed in compliance with the best practices of public sector governance.
In case where there is inconsistency with the CCG for Insurers 2016, the provisions of Public Sector
Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 ("Rules") shall prevall

ii. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner:

S. No. Provision of the Rules Rule | y N
no.
Tick the relevant box|
1. | The independent directors meet the criteria of independence, as defined | 2(d) v
under the Rules.
2. | The Board has the requisite percentage of independent directors. | 3(2) v
At present the Board includes:
Date of
Category Names Appointment
Independent Directors
Executive Director
Non-Executive Directors | Jamil Anwar March 24, 2017
Muhammad Rashid
Mushtaq Ahmad
Fazal ur Rehman
Mushtaq Ahmed Shah
Ghufran Memon
3. | A casual vacancy occurring on the board was filled up by the directors within | 3@4) | v
ninety days.
4. | The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on | 3(5) v

more than five public sector companies and listed companies simultaneously,
except their subsidiaries.

5. | The appointing authorities have applied the fit and proper criteria givenin | 3(7) | v
the Annexure in maklng nominations of the persons for election as board
members under the provisions of the Ordinance.

6. The chairman of the board is working separately from the chief-executive of | 4(1) /
the Company.

08




lipha

Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

S. No. Provision of the Rules Rule | y N
no.
Tick the relevant box|
7. The chairman has been elected from amongst the independent directors. | 4(4) v
8. | The Board has evaluated the candidates for the position of the chief executive | 5(2) v
on the basis of the fit and proper criteria as well as the guidelines specified
by the Commission.
9. | (@ The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" and has ensured that | 5(4) v/
appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the
Company along with its supporting policies and procedures, including
posting the same on the Company's website.
(www.alphainsurance.com.pk)
(b) The Board has set in place adequate systems and controls for the
identification and redress of grievances arising from unethical practices.
10. | The Board has established a system of sound internal control, to ensure | 5(5) 4
compliance with the fundamental principles of probity and propriety;
objectivity, integrity and honesty; and relationship with the stakeholders, in
the manner prescribed in the Rules.
11. | The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate conflict of interest | 5(5)(b) v
policy to lay down circumstances or considerations when a person may be (ii)
deemed to have actual or potential conflict of interests, and the procedure
for disclosing such interest.
12. | The Board has developed and implemented a policy on anti-corruption to | 5(5)(b) v
minimize actual or perceived corruption in the Company. (vi)
13. | (a) The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by establishing open and | 5(5)(c) |
fair procedures for maklng appointments and for determining terms and (i1)
conditions of service.
(b) A Committee has been formed to investigating deviations from the
Company's code of conduct.
14. | The Board has ensured compliance with the law as well as the Company's | 5(5)(c) | v/
internal rules and procedures relating to public procurement, tender regulations, | (iii)
and purchasing and technical standards, when dealing with suppliers of goods
and services.
15. | The board has developed a vision or mission statement, corporate strategy | 5(6) v
and significant policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars
of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or
amended has been maintained.
16. | The board has quantified the outlay of any action in respect of any service | 5(8) v
delivered or goods sold by the Company as a public service obligation, and
have submitted its request for appropriate compensation to the Government
for consideration.
17. | (@ The board has met at least four times during the year. 6(1) v
(b) Written notices of the board meetings, along with agenda and working 6(2) v
papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings.
(¢) The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated. | 6(3)

09
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A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

S. No. Provision of the Rules Rule | y N
no.

Tick the relevant box

18. | The board has carried out performance evaluation of its members, including 8 v
the chairman and the chief executive, on the basis of a process, based on
specified criteria, developed by it. The board has also monitored and assessed
the performance of senior management on annual/half-yearly/quarterly basis.

19. | The board has reviewed and approved the related party transactions placed 9 v
before it after recommendations of the audit committee. A party wise record
of transactions entered into with the related parties during the year has been
maintained.

20. | The board has approved the profit and loss account for, and balance sheet 10 v
as at the end of, the first, second and third quarter of the year as well as the
financial year end, and has placed the annual financial statements on the
Company's website. Monthly accounts were also prepared and circulated
amongst the board members.

21. | All the board members underwent an orientation course arranged by the 11 v
Company to apprise them of the material developments and information as
specified in the Rules.
22. | (a) The board has formed the requisite committees, as specified in the Rules. 12 v
(b) The committees were provided with written term of reference defining v/ (The Board of
their duties, authority and composition. Directors have
(¢) The minutes of the meetings of the committees were circulated to all v not setup any
the board members. Nomination
(d) The committees were chaired by the following non-executive directors: Committee and
Procurement
Committee Number of Members | Name of Chair Committee.)
AC Five Muhammad Rashid
RMC Eight Jamil Anwar
HRC Six Ghufran Memon

Procurement Committee | No Committee is formed N/A

Nomination Committee | No Committee is formed N/A

23. | The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company | 13/14 | v/
Secretary and Chief Internal Auditor, with their remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment, and as per their prescribed qualifications.

24. | The Company has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards 16 v
notified by the Commission under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of section 234
of the Ordinance.

25. | The directors' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the 17 v/
requirements of the Ordinance and the Rules and fully describes the salient
matters required to be disclosed.

26. | The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of 18 v
the Company other than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

27. | A formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration packages of 19 v
individual directors has been set in place. The annual report of the Company
contains criteria and details of remuneration of each director.

28. | The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the chief 20 v
executive and chief financial officer, before approval of the board.

10
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S. No.

Provision of the Rules

Rule
no.

Y N

Tick the relevant box

29.

The Board shall establish an audit committee, whose members shall be
financially literate and majority of them, including its chairman, shall be
Independent Non-Executive Directors, subject to the provisions of sub-rule
(2) of rule 12.

The board has formed an audit committee, with defined and written terms
of reference, and having the following members:

Name of Member

Category

Professional
Background

Muhammad Rashid

Non-Executive
Director(Chairman)

Accounts, Finance
and Accounting

Ghufran Memon

Non-Executive Director

Finance

Jamil Anwar

Non-Executive Director

Law

Mushtaq Ahmad

Non-Executive Director

Public Administration

and Criminal
Investigation

Faraz Ahmed

Head of TA(Secretary) Finance

The chief executive and chairman of the Board are not members of the audit
committee.

21

v

v

30.

The board has setup an effective internal audit function, which has an audit
charter, duly approved by the audit committee, and which worked in accordance
with the applicable standards. However, the Chief Internal Auditor does not
have five years of relevant Audit experience.

22

(The Chief
Internal Auditor
does not have
five years of
relevant audit
experience)

3L

The Company has appointed its external auditors in line with the requirements
envisaged under the Rules.

23

32.

No Public Sector Company shall appoint as external auditors a firm of auditors
which firm or a partner of which firm is non-compliant with the International
Federation of Accounts ' (IFAC) Guidelines on Code of Ethics, as applicable
in Pakistan.

23 (4)

33.

The external auditors shall observe applicable guidelines issued by the
International Federation of Accountants with regard to restriction of non-
audit services. The audit committee shall also ensure that the external auditors
do not perform management functions or make management decisions,
responsibility for which remains with the Board and management of the
Public Sector Company.

23 (5)

34.

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting
requirements of the Rules.

Further disclosures as required under Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers 2016:

Clause 2(5) of the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance Compliance) Guidelines, 2013 issued
by the commission requires that any disclosure required under any other director, code, regulatlon or
rules shall also be made in the statement of compliance, notwithstanding anything contained in the
statement. Accordingly, below are the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers,

2016.

11
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1. The Board has formed the following management committees.

Underwriting, Re-Insurance & Co-Insurance Committee:

Name of the member

Category

Mr. Fazal ur Rehman

Mr. Ghufran Memon

Mr. Mushtaq Ahmad

Mr. Muhammad Ayaz Ghori
Mr. Khawaja Balighuddin

Chairman (Non-Executive Director)
Member
Member
Member

Secretary

Claims Settlement Committee:

Name of the member

Category

Mr. Mushtaqg Ahmed Shah
Mr. Jamil Anwar
Mr. Muhammad Rashid

General Manager
Mr. Sabir Ali

Chairman (Non-Executive Director)
Member
Member
Member

Secretary

Risk Management & Compliance Committee

Name of the member

Category

Mr. Jami Anwar

Mr. Ghufran Memon

Mr. Mushtaq Ahmad Shah
Mr. Muhammad Rashid
Mr. Mushtaqg Ahmad

Mr. Fazal-ur-Rehman

Mr. Ayaz Ghori

Chairman (Non-Executive Director)
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Secretary

The Board has formed the following Board Committees under CCG 2016:

Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee:

Name of the member

Category

Mr. Ghufran Memon

Mr. Mushtaqg Ahmed Shah
Mr. Muhammad Rashid
Mr. Mushtaqg Ahmed

Mr. Umair Abro

Chairman (Non-Executive Director)
Member
Member
Member

Secretary

Investment Committee:

Name of the member

Category

Mr. Mushtaqg Ahmed
Mr. Ghufran Memon
Mr. Muhammad Rashid
Mr. Fazal-ur-Rehman
Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Zain Hamidi

Chairman (Non-Executive Director)
Member

Member

Member

Member

Non Member/Secretary

12
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The Board has formed an Audit committee. It comprises of five members, of whom one is independent
director and four are non-executive directors. The chairman of the Committee is a non-executive director.
The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Audit Committee:

Mr. Muhammad Rashid Chairman (Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Ghufran Memon Member
Mr. Jamil Anwar Member
Mr. Mushtaq Ahmed Shah Member
Head of Audit Department Secretary

The meetings of the committees except Risk Management & Compliance Committee, were held at
least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final results of the Company as required
by CCG 2016. The terms of references of the audit committee have been formed and advised to
the audit committee for compliance.

The Board has setup an effective internal audit function through competent personnel who are
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies
and procedures of the insurer and they are involved in the internal audit function on a regular basis.

All the resident directors of the Company have confirmed that they are registered as taxpayers and
none of them has defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI. None
of the directors or their spouses is engaged in business of stock brokerage.

The Company has prepared a Statement of Ethics and Business Practices, which has been signed
by all the directors and employees of the Company.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions including
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the
Chief Executive officer, other executive and non-executive directors and the key officers, have been
taken by the Board.

The Chief Executive officer, Chief Financial Officer, Compliance Officer and the Head of Internal
Audit possess such qualification and experience as is required under CCG 2016. Moreover, the
persons heading the underwriting, claim, and reinsurance departments, possess qualification and
experience of direct relevance to their respective functions, as required under section 12 of the

Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No. XXXIX of 2000).

Name of the Person Designation

Mr. Muhammad Ayaz Ghori
Mr. Muhammad Ayaz Ghori
Mr. Muhammad Ayaz Ghori
Mr. Muhammad Ayaz Ghori
Mr. Faraz

Mr. Khalid Sheikh

Mr. Khwaja Balighuddin

Mr. Khwaja Balighuddin

Mr. Sabir Ali

Mr. Umair Sattar Abro

Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary
Head of IT
Compliance Officer
Head of Internal Audit
GM Operation

Head of Re-Insurance
Head of Underwriting
Head of Claims

Head of HR

13




lipha

Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

Following changes in the appointments were made during the reporting period

Mr. Maudood Ahmad Lodhi
Mr. Azhar Hussain

Mr. Azhar Hussain
Mr. Ajaz Ali Khan

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Executive Officer

Name of outgoing Name of incoming Designation Reason of change in
employee employee appointment
Mr. Latif Choudhry Mr. Khalid Sheikh GM Operations Resignation by Latif Choudhry
Mr. Latif Choudhry Mr. Ayaz Ghori Compliance Officer Resignation by Latif Choudhry
Mr. Sabir Ali Mr. Umair Sattar Abro | Head of HR Internal Management Changes

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

14

The statutory auditors of the Company have been appointed from the panel of auditors approved
by the Commission in terms of section 48 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No. XXXIX
of 2000). The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not
hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with the
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

The Actuary appointed by the Company neither he nor his spouse and minor children hold shares
of the insurer.

The Board ensured that the appointed actuary complies with the requirement set out for him in
Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

The Board ensures that the investment policy of the insurer is drawn up in accordance with the

provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 and within the timeline enshrined
in the Code.

The Board ensures that the risk management department/function of the insurer is in place as per
the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

The Board ensures that as part of the risk management system, the insurer gets itself rated from JCR-
VIS (credit rating agency) which is being used by its risk management function/department and the
respective Committee as a risk momtorlng tool. The rating assigned for the year 2017 by the said
rating agency is "A" with "Stable" outlook.

The Board has set up a grievance department/function, which fully complies with the requirements
of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

We confirm that all other material principles contained in CCG 2016 have been complied with
except for the following, towards which reasonable progress is being made by the Company to seek
compliance by the end of next accounting period.

The Board of Directors has not clearly defined the respective roles and responsibilities of the Chief
Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board.

The Company has not put in place, in writing, a complete program of compliance down the line
under the supervision of a Compliance Officer.

The Board of Directors has neither formed any Nomination Committee nor assigned its responsibilities
to the Ethics, Human Resource and Remuneration Commuittee.

ABDUL GHUFRAN
Chairman
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We confirm that all other material requirements envisaged in the Rules have been complied with [except
for the following, toward which reasonable progress is being made by the Company to seek compliance

SCHEDULE II
See Paragraph 2(3)

Explanation for Non-Compliance with the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

by the end of next accounting year]: iii

Sr. No.

Rule/Sub-rule no
and Clause no.

Reason for
non-compliance

Future Course
of Action

State Life has been the major shareholders
and nominating the directors. Except one
non of any minority shareholders neither
attending AGM nor they nominating or
supporting any independent director.

Board has taken notice and soon
independent director requirement will
be met.

State Life has been the major shareholders
and nominating the directors. Except one
non of any minority shareholders neither
attending AGM nor they nominating or
supporting any independent director.

Board has taken notice and soon
independent director requirement will
be met.

State Life has been the major shareholders
and nominating the directors. Except one
non of any minority shareholders neither
attending AGM nor they nominating or
supporting any independent director.

Board has taken notice and soon
Chairman criteria will be met.

The Board gave acting CEO charge to Mr.
Azhar Hussain as stop gap arrangement till
the time we hire a suitable person for the
post.

The Board has noted the point for
future compliance.

11.

5(5)(b) (ii)

Board and management adhere to the criteria
as provided in Code of Corporate
Governance, Companies Act 2017 and
Memorandum And Articles of Association
of the Company.

The Board has noted the point and
directed to prepare a separate Conflict
of Interest Policy Document to comply
with the rules.

12.

5(5)(b) (vi)

The Board has directed but the policy was
not finalized.

The policy has almost finalized and
will be implemented soon.

18.

The Board does evaluate the performance
of its members including the Chairman and
CEO in various meeting held but it is not
mentioned as a separate item in the Minutes.

The point has been noted and in future
a separate item will be recorded in the
Minutes to comply with the rule.
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Sr. No.| Rule/Sub-rule no Reason for Future Course
and Clause no. non-compliance of Action

21. 11 The Company has been practicing since | Now it has been decided that it will be
long time to make a presentation to the | the part of the Agenda as a separate
Board members at the time of their |item and will be recorded in the
appointment about the Company but | Minutes too.
unfortunately this fact has not been recorded
in the minutes.

22. 12 The need for nomination committee was | The Board has taken notice of this and
not arise as the Board members were | the function of Nomination Committee
nominated by the State Life who is the | is also included in HR Committee.
major shareholders.

Procurement Committee does exist at | The Board has taken notice of this and

management level and is fully functional |the function of Procurement

without any director. Committee is included in the Board
HR Committee.

29. | 21(1) & 21(2) Due to no independent director the | The Board has taken notice of the
Chairman of the Audit Committee is not | situation and it will be resolved soon.
an independent director.

Due to no independent director the | The Board has taken notice of the
Chairman of the Board is not an | situation and it will be resolved soon.
independent director.

30. 22(2) The Chief Internal Auditor is a member of | The Board is fully aware of the fact.
the professional body and has been
associated with the Company since 2014
and was serving as the Manager Accounts
& Finance when he was promoted as Chief
Internal Auditor. He is quiet capable and
fit for the post, therefore the management
decided to promote him as CIA to comply
with regulation and at the same time save
the additional cost as the Company is
making losses since long time.

16
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Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

Directors’ Report
For the year ended December 31st, 2017

Economic Overview

GDP growth crossed the 5% mark for the first time in 10 years to close the year at 5.28% and Pakistan's
economy is now worth more than USD 300bn. Services has been the major contributor to GDP by 60%.
Total investment recorded a growth of 17% and national savings remained 13.1% of GDP against 14.3%
last year. Consumer Price Index (CPI) remained below the expected 6% to clock-in at 4.09%.Fiscal deficit
to arrive at 4.2% in FY 2017 with total revenue at PKR 4,172bn while the trade deficit has raised to PKR
24bn against target of PKR 20.4bn. Forex reserves have cooled down slightly to USD 21bn. Income per
capita has reached USD 1,629.

Insurance Sector Review

Gross Written Premium (GWP) in the Pakistan's non-life insurance increased by 11% in 2016 (11% in
2015) and in 2017 the same percentage is also expected.

Industry is facing the scenario of cut-throat competition where the insurance rates falling continuously,
however underwriting results are improving over the period mainly because of no major losses. But at
the same time the cost of doing business is increasing with implementation of new legal framework for
insurers by the regulators. Overall the industry needs some major supports from the government to stand
on its feet.

Company Performance

The Directors of your Company presenting 66thAnnual Report together with Audited Financial Statements
and Auditors' Report thereon for the year ended December 31st, 2017.

Following are key financial results for the period under review:

(Rupees)
2017 2016
Gross premium 106,277,047 151,448,143
Net Premium Revenue 79,917,377 79,945,718
Underwriting results (Loss) (99,301,831) (73,176,703)
(Loss) before tax (67,595,316) (19,057,227)
(Loss) after tax (59,846,146) (15,474,564)
Profit available for appropriation 146,176,900 206,122,992

Gross premium has decreased by 30% (16% decreased in 2016) over the previous year. This decrease is
attributable to following facts:
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1. Frequent change of CEOs over the period. Mr. Ajaz Ali Khan held the office from April 2017 to
Oct 2017 and since then your directors are working hard to find an appropriate person for the job.
Due to underwriting reforms company is facing the dip in revenue.

3. Availability of established brands in the market it is quite difficult to increase the business

Non availability of captive business due to government restrictions

Credit Rating

We are pleased to mention here that JCR-VIS has maintained our rating as of last year which is "A" with
stable outlook.

Reinsurance

Due to non-achievement of premium targets committed the reinsurers have reduced the limits assigned
to the Company and reinsurance arrangements have also been switch to Excess of Loss from Proportionate
treaty.

Contingencies and Commitments

The Board has sufficient reasons to believe that the ultimate outcome of contingencies mentioned in
note # 10 to the Financial Statements will be in Company's favour.

Increase in Paid-up Capital
Your company has increased paid-up capital from Rs. 403.6 million to Rs. 500 million.
Dividend and Appropriations

Due to continuous lossesover the periods and for the period Directors have decided not to pay dividend
for the year.

Earning Per Share

Earning per share for the year 2017 has gone further down to Rs. (1.34) as Rs. (0.38) in 2016.

Auditors

M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants on completion of their tenure, being eligible,

offer themselves for reappointment as Auditors of the Company. On recommendation of Audit Committee
the Board proposes to appoint them for the year 2018.
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Statement of Directors

e  The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

e  Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

e  Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

e International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation
of financial statements. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board as are notified
under the Companies Ordinance 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Ordinance 1984, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, and SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002. Any departure
there from has been adequately disclosed.

e  The internal control system has been augmented and has provided effective monitoring and controls
to the senior management.

e  There is no basis to doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

e  Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is attached to these Financial
Statements.

Board Meetings

During the year the twelve (12) meetings of the Board of the Directors were held, attendance details are
as follows:

Attended
Ghufran Memon 12
Jamil Anwar 11
Mushtaqg Ahmed Shah 10
Muhammad Rashid 12
Fazal-ur-Rehman 10
Mushtaq Ahmad 12
Ajaz Ali Khan 7
Maudood Ahmad Lodhi 1
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Board Committees Meetings

Following are the details of Board Committees meeting held during the year:

No. of Meeting Held

Ethics, Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 5
Investment Committee 4
Audit Committee 5

Management Committees Meetings

Following are the details of Management Committees meeting held during the year:

No. of Meeting Held

Underwriting, Reinsurance and Coinsurance Committee 4
Claim Settlement 9
Risk Management & Compliance Committee 3

Pattern of Shareholding

Pattern of shareholding is enclosed in this annual report.

Ten Years Key Data

Ten years key data is also enclosed in this annual report.

Acknowledgement

Our thanks are due to our valued clients for placing their confidence in the Company for protection
of their risk. We acknowledge our shareholders specially State Life for their confidence by putting more
capital to meet the minimum capital requirement. Our thanks are also due to the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, The Insurance Association of Pakistan, State Bank of Pakistan and all our foreign
correspondents and reinsurers whose cooperation, guidance and advice have been a source of valued

assistance to us.

We appreciate the services rendered by our marketing and office staff throughout the country during the
year under review.

For and on behalf of the Board

o

ABDUL GHUFRAN
Karachi: May 09th, 2018 Chairman
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+92 (21) 35685847, +92 (21) 35685095

Review Report to the Members on Statement of Compliance with
the Code of Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code
of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 and the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance)
Rules, 2013 (combined called 'the Code') as prepared by the Board of Directors ("the Board") of Alpha
Insurance Company Limited ("the Company") for the year ended 31 December 2017 to comply with
the requirements of the Code.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the
Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Director's statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party
transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail
in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price and recording
proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of approval of related party transactions by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to
determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with
the best practices contained in the Code as applicable to the Company for the year ended 31 December
2017.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliances with the requirement of the Code as reflected
in paragraph references where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:
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S. No. Reference Rule and Description
Clause No.
1. Paragraph Clause 12 The respective roles and responsibilities of the Chairman
16 and Chief Executive Officer are not clearly defined.
1. Paragraph Clause 29 & | The Company has not formulated a Compliance
17 31 Program.
1il. Paragraph Clause 40 The Board of Directors have neither formed any
18 Nomination Committee nor assigned its responsibilities
to Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration
Committee.
1v. S.No.21 11 & Clause | During the year no orientation course was carried out
19 by the Company for its Directors.

V. Paragraph 2 Clause 43. The meeting of the Risk Management and Compliance
Committee was not held in first quarter.

Vi. S.No.1 2(d) There is no independent director, as defined under the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance)
Rules, 2013.

vil. S.No.2 3(2) The Board of Directors does not have forty percent of
its total members as independent directors.

viil. S.No.7 4(4) The chairman is not an independent director.

ix. S.No.8 5(2) The Board of Directors have not evaluated the candidates
for the position of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
on the basis of the guidelines specified by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).
The Company has not obtained approval from the
SECP of the following candidate for the appointment
of CEO.

Mr. Azhar Hussain (Acting CEO and Managing Director
(MD) for the period from 1st Feb 2017 to 8th April
2017.

X. S.No.11 5(5)(b) (i1) The Company has not formulated any Conflict of
Interest Policy.

. S.No.12 5(5)(b) (vi) There is no Anti-Corruption Policy of the Company

to minimize actual or perceived corruption in the
Company.
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Xil. S.No.18 8 The Board of Directors have not carried out performance
evaluation of its members, including the Chairman.
The Board of Directors have also not monitored and
assessed the performance of senior management on
annual/half-yearly/quarterly basis.
Xiil. S.No.22 12 The Board of Directors have not setup any Nomination
Committee and Procurement Committee.
X1v. S.No.29 21(1) The Chairman of the Audit Committee is not an
Independent Director.
XV. S.No.29 21(2) The Chairman of Board of Directors is also a member
of the Audit Committee.
XVi. S.No.30 22(2) The Chief Internal Auditor does not have five years of
relevant audit experience.
Y. \
Kim¢ e —
Date: 9 May 2018 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi Muhammad Taufig
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+082 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

Auditors’ Report to the Members of Alpha Insurance Company Limited
We have audited the annexed financial statements comprising of:

(i balance sheat;

(i) profit and loss account;

(iii) statement of comprehensive income;
{iv) statement of changes in equity;

) statement of cash flows;

(w1} statement of premiums;

{wii) statement of claims;

{viij  statement of expenses; and

(ix) statameant of investment income

of Alpha Insurance Company Limited ("the Company”) as at 31 December 2017
together with the notes forming part therecf, for the year then ended.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s Board of Directors to establish and maintain a
system of internal control, and prepare and present the financial statements in
conformity with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (300X of 2000) and the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984). Our responsibility is to exprass an
opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in
Pakistan. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting policies used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as, evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion:

a} proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984;

KPR Tasoor Hok & Co , 8 Paslorabip frm sogislerad in Pabiskan mrd a membes 8% of e KPRV oobeoc of
ingispandasd membar Brms alflsed wih KPWMG inleretonal Coopn el [TRPWG brdemalional), & Swias snily.
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c

d)

the financial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, and accurately reflect the books and records of the Company
and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

the financial statements together with the notes theraon present fairly, in all
material respects, the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2017 and
of the profit, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended in
accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give
the information requirad to be disclosed by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980
{XVIll of 1980).

\

Kim¢ T@&*—F —

Date: 9 May 2018 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Karachi Muhammad Taufiq
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Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

Balance Sheet
As at December 31, 2017

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised share capital
[51,000,000 (2016: 50,000,000)
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each]

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
[50,000,000 (2016: 40,360,000)
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each]
Retained earnings
Reserves
TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Underwriting provisions
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR)
Provision for premium deficiency
Provision for unearned premium
Commission income unearned

Creditors and accruals
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers
Accrued expenses
Other creditors and accruals

Other liabilities
Unclaimed dividend

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note 2017 2016

---------------- Rupees -
5 510,000,000 500,000,000
5 | 500,000,000 | | 403,600,000
146,176,900 | | 206,122,992
6 10,175,000 10,175,000
656,351,900 619,897,992
430,990,074 ||| 198,988,834
24,043,486 19,610,021
44,053,707 72,294,491
24 3,650,089 5,753,868
502,737,356 || 296,647,214
7 80,394,4001|| 103,075,459
8 33,288,579 34,608,813
9 46,304,640 48,293,276
159,987,619 185,977,548
3,011,260 3,011,260
665,736,235 485,636,022
1,322,088,135 1,105,534,014

10

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Cé\airman

30

ko

o

1rector




lipha

Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

Balance Sheet
As at December 31, 2017

ASSETS

Cash and bank deposits
Cash and other equivalents
Current and other accounts
Deposits maturing within 12 months

Investments

Deferred Assets
Deferred taxation
Staff retirement benefits

Other assets
Premium due but unpaid - unsecured

Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers - unsecured

Accrued investment income

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims

Taxation - payments less provision
Deferred commission expense
Prepayments

Sundry receivables

Fixed assets

Tangible
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Computer and related accessories
Motor vehicles
Electrical installation

Intangible
Computer software

TOTAL ASSETS

Loy A\

Chairman

Chief Executive

Note 2017 2016
---------------- Rupees -

11
198,761 226,505
132,849,199 22,094,188
- 75,000,000
133,047,960 97,320,693
12 657,956,532 636,388,384
13 38,675,112 29,395,718
30 1,365,397 1,866,229
40,040,509 31,261,947
14 32,998,950 61,178,663
15 41,852,149 33,966,669
16 6,775,099 19,984,830
17 | 325,792,200 137,403,653
18 47,184,173 37,511,437
7,168,520 13,195,827
19 19,908,937 25,709,828
20 4,142,181 4,247,532
485,822,209 333,198,439

21
3,823,362 4,875,092
101,975 76,108
306,113 403,385
236,450 1,229,984
753,025 779,982
5,220,925 7,364,551
5,220,925 7,364,551

1,322,088,135 1,105,534,014

]fl;‘if

—Difector

)%%r’;ctor
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Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2017

Note
Loss for the year after taxation
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Remeasurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plan 30.5

Related deferred tax

Total comprehensive income for the year - Loss

2017 2016
---------------- Rupees -
(59,846,146)  (15,474,564)

(142,780) 90,092
42,834 (27,028)
(99,946) 63,064
(59,946,092)  (15,411,500)

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

A Wi

Chief Executive

Chairman .~Difector

/ Il‘%fh"" "é

4 .
“ Director
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Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2017

OPERATING CASH FLOWS

(a) Underwriting activities
Premiums received
Reinsurance premiums paid
Claims paid
Reinsurance and other recoveries received
Commission paid
Commission received
Other underwriting payments (management expenses)

Net cash (used in) / generated from underwriting activities

(b) Other operating activities
Income tax paid
General and administration expenses paid
Other operating payments
Other operating receipts
Net cash used in other operating activities

Net cash used in all operating activities
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Profit / return received
Dividend received
Payment for investments
Proceeds from disposal of investments
Fixed capital expenditure
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Net cash generated from investment activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net cash generated from financing activities -
Issue of right shares

Increase in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note

11

2017 2016

---------------- Rupees -
133,587,484 156,860,602
(71,291,107) (52,278,867)
(111,868,245) (60,556,683)
66,136,593 29,698,154
(20,216,383) (31,079,161)
2,070,549 23,378,688
(65,756,965) (65,676,117)
(67,338,074) 346,616
(11,160,125) (7,186,046)
(30,944,454) (30,906,408)
(3,628,970) (1,517,891)
7,469,171 3,911,342
(38,264,378) (35,699,003)

(105,602,452)

(35,352,387)

57,922,823 60,752,532
11,141,777 6,700,681
(844,542,633) ||  (367,769,777)
820,879,846 || 399,443,657
(472,094) (157,155)
- 552,099
44,929,719 99,522,037
96,400,000 -
35,727,267 64,169,650
97,320,693 33,151,043
133,047,960 97,320,693
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Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2017

Reconciliation to Profit and Loss Account

Operating cash flows
Depreciation expense

Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Increase in assets other than cash
Decrease in liabilities
Investment income

Reversal of deferred tax

Loss after taxation

Definition of cash:

2017 2016
---------------- Rupees -
(105,602,452)  (35,352,387)

(2,615,720) (3,199,608)

- 552,099
165,419,574 85,153,376
(180,044,335) (146,469,503)
53,760,227 78,203,091
9,236,560 5,638,368
(59,846,146)  (15,474,564)

Cash comprises of cash in hand, policy stamps, cheques in hand and bank balances which are readily
convertible to cash in hand and which are used in the cash management function on a day-to-day basis.

Cash for the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows consists of:
Cash and other equivalents

- cash in hand

- stamps in hand

Current and other accounts

- current accounts
- savings accounts

Deposits maturing within 12 months

2017 2016
--------- Rupees -

- 49,999
198,761 176,506
198,761 226,505
4,108,368 4,380,149
128,740,831 17,714,039
132,849,199 22,094,188
- 75,000,000
133,047,960 97,320,693

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

A

Chief Executive Chairman .~Diféctor
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Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

Statement of Investment Income
For the year ended December 31, 2017

Income from non-trading investments

Loans and receivables
Return on term deposit receipts

Held-to-maturity
Return on government securities
Return on term finance certificates
Amortisation of (premium) / discount

Available-for-sale
Dividend income
Gain on sale of available-for-sale investments

Provision for impairment in value of investments

(Provision) / reversal for diminution in value of investments

classified as available-for-sale

Net investment income

2017 2016

---------------- Rupees -
684,451 35,137
42,615,318 52,625,255
1,997,545 4,363,739
(497,222) 613,902
44,115,641 57,602,896
11,054,777 7,132,957
7,910,759 5,365,323
18,965,536 12,498,280
(10,005,401) 8,066,778
53,760,227 78,203,091

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Wadif) AN

Chief Executive Chairman
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Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2017

1

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Alpha Insurance Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 24 December
1951 under the Indian Companies Act VII of 1913 as a public limited company and was registered
as a non-life insurance company by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. The Company is engaged in providing non-life insurance
business comprising fire, marine, motor, health, credit and suretyship and miscellaneous. The
Company commenced its commercial operations on 23 January 1952.

The principal and registered office of the Company is situated at 4th Floor, Building 1-B, State Life
Square, I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi. The Company has 15 (2016: 15) branches in Pakistan. The
parent entity of the Company is State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan holding 95.15%
(2016: 93.99%) shares of the Company.

1.1 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 31 May 2017, approved to increase the paid
up share capital of the Company by issuance of 9,640,000 shares at Rs. 10 each to the
shareholders of the Company in the ratio of one share for every 4.186722 ordinary shares of
the Company held by the shareholders. All the shares were subscribed by the parent company
as the other shareholders renounced their right offer and an amount of Rs. 96.4 million was
received by the Company against which 9,640,000 shares of Rs. 10 each were issued on 20
July 2017.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the format prescribed by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through the repealed Securities and Exchange
Commission (Insurance) Rules, 2002 [SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002], vide S.R.O. 938 dated 12
December 2002.

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and
the provisions for and the directives issued by the SECP under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the repealed SEC (Insurance) Rules,
2002. Wherever the requirements of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000, the repealed SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 or the directives issued by the
SECP differ with the requirements of IFRSs, the requirements of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the repealed SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002
or the said directives shall prevail.

The SECP has allowed the insurance companies to defer the application of International
Accounting Standard (IAS) - 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” in
respect of valuation of “available-for-sale investments”. Accordingly, the requirements of IAS
- 39, to the extent allowed by SECP as aforesaid, have not been considered in the preparation
of these financial statements.
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2.2

23

2.4

During the year, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP") vide S.R.O
88(1)/2017 and S.R.O 89(1)/2017 dated 9 February 2017 has issued the Insurance Accounting
Regulations, 2017 and Insurance Rules, 2017 (the new Rules and Regulations). The application
of these Regulations and Rules for the purpose of preparation and presentation of the financial
statements was effective from 1 April 2017.

SECP vide letter ID/OSM/Alpha/2017/12427, dated 24 October 2017 has granted exemption
to the Company to prepare their half yearly accounts for the period ended 30 June 2017, third
quarter accounts for the period ended 30 September 2017 and annual audited accounts for
the year ended 31 December 2017 in accordance with the requirements of repealed SEC
(Insurance) Rules, 2002 and has allowed the application of the new Rules and Regulations
effective from the accounting year commencing from 1 January 2018. Hence, these financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 are prepared in accordance with the
requirements of repealed SEC (Insurance) Rules 2002.

The new Rules and Regulations require significant disclosures / requirements, which are
relevant to the Company includes but not limited to: Presentation and disclosure of financial
statements prescribed in Annexure II of the Insurance Rules, 2017, recognition of available-
for-sale investments at fair value as per IAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement", recognition of premium receivable under a insurance policy / cover note as
written from the date of attachment of risk to the policy / cover note and insurance policy
is required to be issued where premium has been received by the insurer either in full or
installment. The management has completed an initial assessment of changes required in
respect of the above stated requirements and considered major impact in accordance with the
format prescribed by SEC Insurance Rules, 2017 is on presentation and disclosure of financial
statements as per Annexure II of the Insurance Rules, 2017 and on valuation of available-for-
sale investments, the impact of which has been disclosed in note 12.1.2.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
for certain financial assets and liabilities which are stated at fair value or amortised cost as
applicable and obligations in respect of staff retirement benefit is carried at present value of
defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets.

The financial statements have been prepared following the accrual basis of accounting.
Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. These financial statements are
prepared and presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

Critical accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with the requirements of approved
accounting standards as applicable to insurance companies in Pakistan requires management
to make judgments, estimates and underlying assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. The judgments /
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience, current trends and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result
of which form the basis of making the estimates about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
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Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Significant accounting estimates and areas where judgment were made by the management
in the application of accounting policies are as follows:

- Classification of insurance contracts (note 4.2);

- Underwriting provisions (note 4.2.3);

- Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims (note 4.2.6 and 17);

- Provision for premium due but unpaid (note 4.2.4 and14);

- Provision for amount due from other insurers / reinsurers (note 4.2.5 and 15);

- Obligation in respect of defined benefit plan (note 4.4.1 and 30);

- Classification and valuation of financial assets (note 4.8.1);

- Residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation / amortisation of fixed assets
(note 4.9 and 21);

- Impairment of financial and non-financial assets (notes 4.8.1.4 and 4.10);

- Allocation of management expenses (note 4.12 and 23); and

- Current and deferred taxation (note 4.13 and 27).

- Segment Reporting (note 4.17 and 33).

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will
be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018:

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to [FRS
2 clarify the accounting for certain types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three accounting areas (a)
measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments
settled net of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new requirements could affect the classification and/or
measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of expense
recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact
on the Company’s financial statements.

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40 ‘Investment Property' - effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies that an entity shall transfer
a property to, or from, investment property when, and only when there is a change in use.
A change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. In 1solat10n a change in management's
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial statements.
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Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures'] (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar entities may elect to
measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for
each associate or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment.
Furthermore, similar election is available to non-investment entity that has an interest in an
associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity method, to
retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture
to the investment entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election
is made separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture. The amendments are
not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

[FRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration' (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation
when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in advance of the item it
relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance
foreign currency is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized.
The date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain the date on
which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each
payment or receipt of advance consideration. The application of interpretation is not likely
to have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

[FRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty
over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over
tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application
of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

[FRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers' (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether,
how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance,
including TAS 18 'Revenue', IAS 11 'Construction Contracts' and IFRIC 13 'Customer Loyalty
Programmes'. The application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on the Company's
financial statements.

IFRS 9, published in July 2014, replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial instruments, including a new expected credit loss model for calculating
impairment on financial assets, and the new general hedge accounting requirements. It also
carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from
IAS 39. IFRS 9 is effective for annual reporting years beginning on or after 1 July 2018, with
early adoption permitted. The Company is assessing the potential impact on its Financial
Statements resulting from the application of IFRS 9, which is generally expected to have an
impact on the Financial Statements of insurance businesses.
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Amendment to IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts'- Applying IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' with
IFRS 4 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). The amendment
address issue arising from the different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming new
standard IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts'. The amendments introduce two alternative options
for entities issuing contracts within the scope of IFRS 4, notably a temporary exemption and
an overlay approach. The temporary exemption enables eligible entities to defer the
implementation date of IFRS 9. The overlay approach allows an entity applying IFRS 9 from
1 July 2018 onwards to remove from profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting
mismatches that may occur from applying IFRS 9 before IFRS 17 is applied.

Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' - Long Term Interests
in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities with preference shares
or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as
long-term interests or ‘LTI'). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are
in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both
standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company's
financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments
to following approved accounting standards:

[FRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to
clarify the accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation
that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously held interest in
a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its
previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends
(including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently
with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general
borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its
intended use or sale.

The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and
are not likely to have an impact on Company's financial statements.

The Companies Act, 2017 was enacted on 30 May 2017 and SECP vide its circular 23 of 2017
has clarified that the companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017
shall prepare their financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Companies Act, 2017 applicable for financial year beginning
on 1 January 2018 requires certain additional disclosures and Section 235 of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 relating to treatment of surplus arising out of revaluation of
assets has not been carried forward in the Companies Act, 2017. The amendments are not
likely to have an impact on Company's financial statements except extended disclosures.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise
stated.
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4.1

4.2

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are effective during the current year

During the year, certain new standards and anmendments to existing standards became
effective. However, they did not have material effect on these financial statements.

Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Company, as insurer, has accepted
insurance risk from the insurance contract holder (insured) by agreeing to compensate the
insured if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the insured.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract
for the remainder of its tenure, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this
period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.

Insurance contracts are classified into the following main categories, depending on the nature
and duration of risk and whether or not the terms and conditions are fixed.

- Fire and property damage;

- Marine, aviation and transport;
- Motor;

- Accident and health;

- Credit and suretyship; and

- Miscellaneous.

(a) Fire and property damage insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company's
customers for damage suffered to their properties or for the value of property lost.
Customers who undertake commercial activities on their premises could also receive
compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the insured properties
in their business activities.

(b) Marine, aviation and transport insurance covers the loss or damage of vessels, cargo,
terminals, and any transport or property by which cargo is transferred, acquired or held
between the points of origin and final destination.

(c) Motor insurance provides protection against losses incurred as a result of theft, traffic
accidents and against third party liability that could be incurred in an accident.

(d) Accident and health insurance covers unforeseen cash flows and financial hardships
arising due to ailments, accidents and other natural causes necessitating hospitalisation.

(e) Credit and suretyship insurance covers performance bonds in which surety assures the
oblige that the principal can perform the task.

(f) Other types of insurance contracts are classified in the miscellaneous category which
includes mainly engineering, terrorism, worker compensation, and travel insurances, etc.

These contracts are provided to individuals as well as commercial organisations with various
tenures according to the nature and terms of the contract and the needs of the insured.
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4.2.1 Premium

Premium received / receivables under a policy is recognised as written from the date of
attachment of the policy to which it relates. Premium income under a policy for direct
businesses is recognised over the period of insurance from inception to expiry evenly over
the period of the policy.

Premium income also includes administrative surcharge that represents documentation and
other charges recovered by the Company from policy holders in respect of policies issued,
at the rate of 5% of the premium written restricted to a maximum of Rs. 2,000 per policy.
Administrative surcharge is recognised as premium at the time the policies are written.

Receivables under insurance contracts are recognised when due, at the fair value of the
consideration receivable less provision for doubtful debts, if any. If there is objective evidence
that the receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the receivable
accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in the profit and loss account.

4.2.2 Reinsurance ceded

The Company enters into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to
limit the potential for losses arising from certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums
is accounted for in the same period as the related premium for the direct business being
reinsured. Reinsurance premium is recognised as expense after taking into account the
proportion of deferred premium expense which is calculated using pattern similar to calculation
of premium income for the same policy. The deferred portion of premium expense is recognised
as prepaid insurance premium ceded.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are
estimated in a manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets
represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for outstanding claims or settled claims
associated with the reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance
contracts.

Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilities. Income or expenses from
reinsurance contracts are not offset against income or expenses from related insurance contracts.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished
or expire.

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on each reporting date. If there
is an objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the
carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that
impairment loss in the profit and loss account.

4.2.3 Underwriting provisions

Underwriting provisions in respect of the insurance contracts entered into by the Company
are accounted for as under:

47




lipha

Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

48

4.2.3.1 Provision for outstanding claims including Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)

Provision for outstanding claims include amounts in relation to unpaid reported claims,
claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and expected claims settlement costs.

Outstanding claims

The amount of claims that have been reported and are yet unpaid or partially unpaid at
the end of reporting year for a given accident year.

A liability for outstanding claims (claim incurred) is recognized for all claims incurred
which represents the estimates of the claims intimated or assessed before the end of the
reporting period and measured at the undiscounted value of expected future payments.
Provision for liability in respect of unpaid reported claims is made on the basis of individual
case estimates while taking into consideration the past claims settlement experience including
handling costs and the Company’s reserving policy. Where applicable, deductions are made
for salvage and their recoveries.

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims and salvage recoveries are recognized
as an asset and measured at the amount expected to be received.

Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) Claims

The losses that have incurred or are in the occurrence period at the end of reporting year
and have not been intimated to the Company by that end of reporting year, or if reported,
complete details are not available to the Company, so as to ascertain the amount of loss
for that claim as claims outstanding.

The Company is required, as per SECP circular no. 9 of 2016 dated 09 March 2016
“Guidelines for Estimation of Incurred but not reported claims reserve, 2016” to estimate
and maintain the provision for claims incurred but not reported for each class of business
by using prescribed Method “Chain Ladder Method” and other alternate method as allowed
under the provisions of the Guidelines.

The actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2017 has been carried out by independent firm
of actuaries for determination of IBNR for each class of business. The actuarial valuation
is based on a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques, based on empirical
data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse deviation as required
/ allowed by the circular 9 of 2016. IBNR is determined by using Chain Ladder Method
for all class of business. The claim outstanding and claims paid till date are deducted from
the ultimate claim payments for that particular year to derive an IBNR estimate for that
year.

Any negative values are ignored. The total for each accident year shall be the total IBNR
as at the end of reporting year for that risk class. IBNR triangles are made on a yearly basis
for each class of business. The methods used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly.
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4.23.2

4233

4.2.3.4

4.2.4

4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

Premium deficiency reserve

As per the repealed SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 where the cumulative unearned premium
reserve for any classes of business is not adequate to meet the expected future liability, after
reinsurance, from claims and other supplementary expenses, including reinsurance expense,
commissions and other underwriting expenses, expected to be incurred after the reporting
date in respect of policies in that class of business in force at the reporting date, a premium
deficiency reserve is recognised as a liability to meet the deficit. The movement in premium
deficiency reserve is recorded as an expense / income in the profit and loss account for the
year.

For this purpose, loss ratios for each class are estimated based on historical claims development.
Judgment is used in assessing the extent to which past trends may not apply in future or
the effects of one-off claims. Further, actuarial valuation has been carried out to determine
the amount of premium deficiency reserve in respect of all class of business.

Provision for unearned premium

Provision for unearned premium represents the portion of premium written relating to the
unexpired period of coverage and is recognised as a liability by the Company. The unexpired
portion based on the actuarial valuation carried out at each year end.

Commission income unearned

Commission income from reinsurers is recognised at the time of issuance of the underlying
insurance policy by the Company. This income is deferred and brought to account as
revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of the reinsurance premium to which
it relates.

Premium due but unpaid

This is recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration receivable, less
provision for impairment, if any.

Amounts due to / from other insurers / reinsurers

Amounts due to / from other insurers / reinsurers are carried at cost which is the fair value
of the consideration to be paid / received in future for services received / rendered less
provision for impairment.

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims

Claim recoveries receivable from reinsurers are recognised as assets at the same time as the
claims which give rise to the right of recoveries are recognised as liabilities and are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered after considering impairment in relation thereto.
Deferred commission expense

Commission expense and costs incurred in obtaining and recording policies are deferred

and recognised as an asset and are recognised in the profit and loss account as expenses
in accordance with the pattern of recognition of premium income.
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4.2.8

4.3

44

Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded

Prepaid reinsurance represents the portion of reinsurance premium which is not yet
recognised as an expense. Re-insurance premium is recognised as an expense as follows:

- For proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the period of the underlying
policies; and

- For non-proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the period of indemnity.
Creditors and other accruals

Liabilities for other creditors and accruals are carried at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods and / or services received, whether or not
billed to the Company.

Employees benefits plan
4.4.1 Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an approved and funded gratuity scheme for all permanent
employees who attain the minimum qualification period for entitlement to gratuity.
The liability / asset recognized in the balance sheet is the present value of defined
benefit obligation at the reporting date less fair value of plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually using Projected Unit Credit Method.
Remeasurements which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income.

The Company determines the net interest expense / (income) on the net defined
benefit liability / (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-
net defined benefit liability / (asset), taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability / (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and
benefit payments. Net interest expense and current service cost are recognized in
profit and loss account and actuarial gains / loss are recognised in other comprehensive
income as they occur and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The last actuarial valuation of the Company’s defined benefit plan was carried on
as of 31 December 2017.

4.4.2 Defined contribution plan
The Company also operates a contributory provident fund (defined contribution
plan) for all permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions are made both by
the Company and the employees to the Fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary.

4.4.3 Employees' compensated absences

The Company accounts for liability in respect of employees’ compensated absences
in the period in which these are earned.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Contingent assets are not recognised and are also not disclosed unless an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. Contingent liabilities are not recognised and are disclosed unless the
probability of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried on the balance sheet at cost / amortised cost. For
the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, cheques
and stamps in hand, deposits with banks in current and savings accounts and term deposits
receipts with banks with original maturities of twelve months or less.

Sundry receivables

These are recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration receivable less
impairment, if any.

Financial instruments
4.8.1 Financial assets
4.8.1.1 Classification
The classification of financial assets is determined at initial recognition and depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Currently, the financial
assets of the Company are classified into the following categories:
a) At fair value through profit or loss
These financial assets are acquired principally for the purpose of generating
profit from short-term fluctuation in prices or are part of a portfolio for which
there is a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking.

b)  Available-for-sale

These are non-derivative financial assets, which are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time which may be sold in response to the needs for
liquidity or changes in price.

c¢)  Held-to-maturity
These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

and fixed maturity, in respect of which the Company has the positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity.
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4.8.2

d) Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market.

4.8.1.2 Initial recognition and measurement

Investments other than those categorised into 'financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss' category are initially recognised at fair values which includes transaction
costs which are directly attributable to the acquisition of the securities. Investments
classified as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' are initially recognised
at fair values and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. All
purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame
established by regulations or market convention are recognised at the trade date.
Trade date is the date when the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

4.8.1.3 Subsequent measurement

Financial assets classified as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' are,
subsequently, measured at their fair values and gains and losses arising from changes
in respective fair values are included in the profit and loss account.

Available-for-sale investments are, subsequently, measured at the lower of cost or
market value (market value being taken as lower if the reduction is other than
temporary) in accordance with the requirements of S.R.O. 938 issued by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan on 12 December 2002. In case of quoted
equity securities, the market value is determined by using Stock Exchange quotations
as at the reporting date.

Investments classified as held-to-maturity are, subsequently, measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less any impairment losses. Any premium
paid or discount availed on acquisition of held-to-maturity financial assets is deferred
and amortised over the term of the asset using the effective interest method.

4.8.1.4 Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets classified as 'loans and receivables', a provision for impairment
is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash outflows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

4.8.1.5 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. These are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are derecognised at the time
when these are extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial liabilities is taken to
the profit and loss account.
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4.8.3

4.9

4.10

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Fixed assets

4.9.1

4.9.2

Tangible assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any). Historical cost includes expenditure that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Normal repairs and maintenance
expenditure is charged to the profit and loss account as and when these are incurred.

Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using the straight line method
whereby the depreciable amount of an asset is written off over the estimated useful
life in accordance with the rates specified in note 21 to the financial statements. The
assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. Depreciation is charged on additions
from the month of acquisition and on disposals upto the month of disposal.

An item of fixed assets is derecognised upon disposal and when no economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses on disposal of tangible assets are taken to the profit and loss account
in the period in which disposals are made.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets having finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. These are amortised using
the straight line method over their estimated useful lives. The useful lives and
depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

Gains or losses on disposal of intangible assets are taken to the profit and loss account
in the period in which disposals are made.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying values of assets are reviewed at each reporting date for impairment where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may
not be recoverable. If such an indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to the recoverable amounts.
The resulting impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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4.11

4.12

4.13

Revenue recognition

Premium income under a policy is recognised over the period of insurance from the date
of inception of the policy to which it relates till the expiry in case of marine cargo business
whereas, for all other cases of premium, income is recognised as a difference between total
premium written and provision for unearned premium.

Commission income is taken to the profit and loss account on a time proportionate basis
in accordance with the pattern of recognition of reinsurance premium to which it relates.

Administrative surcharge recovered by the Company from policy holders is included in
income.

Income from held-to-maturity investments is recognised on time proportion basis taking
into account the effective yield on the investment. The difference between redemption
and purchase price of the held-to-maturity investment is amortised and recognised in the
profit and loss account over the term of investment.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive such dividend is established.

Gain / loss on sale of investments is included in the profit and loss account in the period
of sale.

Return on bank balances is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the
effective yield.

Allocation of management expenses

Management expenses have been allocated to various business segments as are deemed
equitable by the management. Expenses not allocable to the underwriting business are
charged under general and administration expenses.

Taxation

Tax charge for the period comprises current and deferred taxation. Tax charge is recognised
in the profit and loss account except to the extent that it relates to the items recognised
directly in the equity in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on profits and gains of insurance business computed
in accordance with the rules specified in the Fourth Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 after taking into account tax credits available, if any. The charge for current tax is
calculated using the prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the income for
the period, if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments where necessary,
relating to prior years which arise from assessments framed / finalised during the current
year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred taxation is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of
all major temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
used for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable income will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

Proposed dividends and transfers between reserves

Dividends, if any, declared and transfers between reserves made subsequent to the reporting
date are considered as non-adjusting events and are recognised in the financial statements
in the year in which such dividends are declared and transfers are made.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into reporting currency at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. All exchange
differences are routed through the profit and loss account.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in
providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of other business segments. The Company accounts for segment reporting using the
classes of business as specified under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the repealed SEC
(Insurance) Rules, 2002. The reported operating segments are also consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officer who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. The performance of segments
is evaluated on the basis of underwriting results of each segment.

The Company has five primary business segments for reporting purposes namely fire and
property damage, marine aviation and transport, motor, accident and health and credit
and suretyship.

Investment and income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are, therefore, not
allocated to any segment. The accounting policies of operating segments are the same as
those described in the summary of significant accounting policies.

Assets and liabilities are allocated to particular segments on the basis of gross premium
written during the year. Those assets and liabilities which cannot be allocated to a particular
segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.
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SHARE CAPITAL

5.1 Authorised share capital

2017 2016 Note 2017 2016

51,000,000 50,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 510,000,000 500,000,000

5.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

2017 2016 2017 2016

..... Number of shares..... ~eoreeemmeeeee RUpeEES ormmneeeeeeee

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each:

1,162,000 1,162,000 - fully paid in cash 11,620,000 11,620,000
29,198,000 29,198,000 - issued as fully paid bonus shares 291,980,000 291,980,000
19,640,000 10,000,000 - issued as right shares 5.4 196,400,000 100,000,000
50,000,000 40,360,000 500,000,000 403,600,000

5.3 Following is the pattern of the shareholding of the Company:

2017 2016 Percentage of holding 2017 2016
..... Number of shares..... 2017 2016 Rupees —
47,574,843 37,934,843 Parent Company *  95.15% 93.99% 475,748,430 379,348,430
2,412,526 2,412,526 Individuals 4.83% 5.98% 24,125,260 24,125,260
12,631 12,631  Director 0.02% 0.03% 126,310 126,310
50,000,000 40,360,000 500,000,000 403,600,000

* State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan.

5.4 During the year, the Company has made a right issue of 9,640,000 (2016: Nil) shares at a price
of Rs. 10 (2016: Nil) each to its existing shareholders in the proportion of their shareholdings. All
the shares were subscribed by the parent company as the other shareholders renounced their right
offer. (refer note 1.1).

Note 2017 2016
---------------- Rupees -
RESERVES
Capital reserve
Reserve for exceptional losses 6.1 3,355,000 3,355,000

Revenue reserves
General reserve 6,820,000 6,820,000
10,175,000 10,175,000

6.1 The reserve for exceptional losses represents amounts set aside till 31 December 1978 to avail
deduction thereof in computing taxable income, as allowed previously under the old Income Tax
Act of 1922. After the introduction of the repealed Income Tax Ordinance, 1979, which did not
permit the said deduction, the Company discontinued the setting aside of amounts as reserve for
exceptional losses.
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Note 2017 2016
---------------- Rupees -
AMOUNT DUE TO OTHER INSURERS /
REINSURERS
Due to reinsurers 70,197,639 92,459,546
Due to other insurers 10,196,761 10,615,913
80,394,400 103,075,459
ACCRUED EXPENSES
Commission in respect of outstanding premium 27,364,427 28,473,467
Other accrued expenses 5,924,152 6,135,346
33,288,579 34,608,813
OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS
Commission payable to agents 14,330,763 15,159,485
Cash margins against performance bonds 6,612,620 4,696,972
Federal Excise Duty and sales tax payable 18,190,496 21,609,860
Income tax deducted at source 139,367 348,973
Workers' welfare fund 9.1 2,197,746 2,197,746
Federal Insurance Fee payable 55,879 -
Others 9.2 4,777,769 4,280,240

9.1

9.2

46,304,640 48,293,276

The Finance Act 2008 introduced amendments to the Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) Ordinance,
1971 whereby the definition of industrial establishment was extended. The amendments were

challenged at various levels and conflicting judgments were rendered by the Lahore High Court,
Sindh High Court and Peshawar High Court.

The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its judgment dated 10 November 2016, has
upheld the view of Lahore High Court and decided that WWF is not a tax and hence the
amendments introduced through Finance Act, 2008 are ultra-vires to the Constitution.

The Federal Board of Revenue has filed Civil Review Petitions in respect of above judgment with
the prayer that the judgment dated 10 November 2016 passed in the Civil Appeal may kindly be
reviewed in the interest of justice.

In view of the above, on prudent basis the management has decided not to reverse charge for
WWE recorded for the years upto 2015 amounting to Rs. 2.198 million.

This includes outstanding claims in respect of which cheques have been issued by the Company
for claim settlement but the same have not been encashed by the claimant. The following is the
ageing as required by SECP circular No. 11 dated 19 May 2014:
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Note 2017 2016
---------------- Rupees -
- More than 6 months 471,459 333,864
-1 to 6 months - -
2017
(Age-wise Breakup)
1to6 7to 12 13 to 24 25t036 | Beyond 36 Total
months months months months Months
--------------------------------- Rupees-----rmsmmmmmmmmmmncceeee
Claims not encashed - 132,829 63,252 169,780 105,598 471,459
2016
(Age-wise Breakup)
1to6 7to 12 13 to 24 25t036 | Beyond36|  oial
months months months months Months
--------------------------------- Rupees---rmmmmmmrmmmmmmrceeeeee
Claims not encashed - 18,954 115,124 199,786 - 333,864

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

10.1 Contingencies

58

10.1.1

10.1.2

Various claims amounting to Rs. 78.718 million (2016: Rs. 93.181 million) have been lodged by
various parties against the Company. The Company has not acknowledged these claims as the
management considers that the Company is not liable to settle these amounts.

The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised upto tax year 2017. Matters of
disagreement exist between the Company and the tax authorities for the tax year 2009, 2011, 2012,
2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016. In prior years, the Commissioner has passed amended assessment
orders for the these tax years under section 122(5A), wherein tax on dividend income has been
charged at corporate tax rate by treating such income as business income of the Company under
Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance. Further, certain disallowances were made in respect of provision
for IBNR claims, non-withholding of tax on commission expenses and payment of certain expenses
in cash. The management is contesting these matters with the tax authorities and has filed appeals
with the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), the Honorable High Court of Sindh (the
Court) and with the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIRA) and is confident that these
matters will be decided in favour of the Company. Consequently, no provision has been made
in these financial statements in respect of the above matters.

For tax years 2009 and 2014, the ACIR has passed amended assessment order under section 122(5A)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 wherein tax on dividend income has been charged at corporate
tax rate by treating such income as business income of the Company under Fourth Schedule to
the Ordinance. As a result of the amended assessment order for tax year 2009, demand of Rs. 4.627
million was created and for tax year 2014, demand of Rs. 18.583 million was created against which
the Company has paid Rs. 9.292 million . The Company has filed appeals before CIRA and if the
appeal is decided against the Company, a tax liability of Rs. 13.918 million would arise.
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10.2

For tax years 2015 and 2016, the ACIR passed an amended assessment order under section 122(5A),
wherein tax on dividend income has been charged at corporate tax rate by treating such income
as business income of the Company under Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance. Further, certain
disallowances were made in respect of non-withholding of tax on commission expenses and payment
of certain expenses in cash. Consequently, tax demand of Rs. 2.298 million and Rs. 6.825 million
was created respectively. Against the amended assessment order, an appeal was filed before the
CIRA, who vide combined appellate order dated 21 November 2017 allowed relief in respect
chargeability of dividend at corporate tax rates and levy of Worker's Welfare Fund whereas additions
on account of non-withholding of tax commission expense and cash expenses made by the
Company were confirmed. The company has filed a further appeal before the ATIR on the issues
confirmed by the CIRA. Moreover, the department has also filed appeal before the ATIR challenging
the relief granted by the CIRA. If the appeal is decided against the Company, a tax liability of Rs.
9.123 million would arise.

During the current year, the ACIR issued notice dated 16 May 2017, under section 122(5A) for
passing an amended order on certain issues for the tax year 2011. However, the Company has filed
a writ petition before the Honorable High Court of Sindh challenging the validity of the notice
being barred by limitation of time. The Court has granted an interim order and the said interim
order is operating. Based on tax advisor opinion the management is confident of favourable
outcome of the said appeal. accordingly, no tax provision has been recorded in these financial
statements.

Commitments

There are no commitments as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

Note 2017 2016
---------------- Rupees -——-—-——m
CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
Cash and other equivalents
- cash in hand - 49,999
- Policy stamps and bond papers in hand 198,761 176,506
198,761 226,505
Current and other accounts
- current accounts 4,108,368 4,380,149
- savings accounts 11.1 128,740,831 17,714,039
132,849,199 22,094,188
Deposits maturing within 12 months
Term deposits - local currency 11.2 75,000,000

11.1

11.2

133,047,960 97,320,693

These accounts carry interest at rates ranging between 3.75% and 4.25% (2016: 3.93% and 4.58%)
per annum.

This had tenure of one month and carried mark-up at the rate 5.7% per annum. No term deposit
has been placed with bank as at 31 December 2017.

59




lipha

Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

Note 2017 2016
--------------- Rupees -
12 INVESTMENTS
Available-for-sale
Quoted equity securities 12.1 114,647,006 115,941,693
Less: Diminution in the value of investments (14,526,479) (2,485,131)
100,120,527 113,456,562
Unquoted equity shares 12.1.1 - 2,654,949
Less: Diminution in the value of investments - (2,035,947)
- 619,002
100,120,527 114,075,564
Held-to-maturity
Government securities 12.2 557,836,005 501,396,084
Term finance certificates 12.3 - 20,916,736
557,836,005 522,312,820
657,956,532 636,388,384
12.1 Quoted equity securities
Face
2017 2016 value Nature Of investee Note 2017 2016
No. of shares Rupees Company T —
Oil and gas
11,300 11,300 10 Oil & Gas Development Company Limited 2,369,127 2,369,127
5,000 5,000 10 Pakistan Oilfields Limited 2,169,519 2,169,519
92,000 92,000 10 Pakistan Petroleum limited 18,868,530 18,368,530
17,850 15,000 10 Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 6,279,552 6,279,552
35,063 35,063 10 Shell (Pakistan) Limited 784,895 784,895
Chemicals
2,000 10 Linde Pakistan Limited 322,500
Fertilizer
108,500 108,500 10 Engro Fertilizer Limited 6,825,543 6,825,543
79,627 79,627 10 Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 5,892,283 5,892,283
Forestry (Paper and Board)
119,500 120,000 10 Pakistan Paper Products Limited 149,375 150,000
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12.1 Quoted equity securities

Face
2017 2016 value
No. of shares Rupees
25,000 25,000 10
23,367 23,367 10
83,383 123,483 10
26,544 37,044
23,226 20,850 10
28,815 28,815 10
121,000 121,000 10
917,500 917,500 10
19,831 19,831 5
177,777 177,777 10
221,190 202,000 10

gature of investee Note 2017 2016
Ompany ---------------- Rupees ----------------

Leasing
Orix Leasing Pakistan Limited 1,192,990 1,192,990
Tobacco
Pakistan Tobacco Company Limited 78,710 78,710
Pharmaceuticals
GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited 5,976,082 8,850,061
Glaxosmithkline Consumer Healthcare
Pakistan Limited 1,902,412 -
Highnoon Laboratories Limited 11,823,800 11,823,800
Travel and Leisure
Pakistan Services Limited 199,116 199,116
Commercial Banks
Allied Bank Limited 14,470,321 14,470,321
Askari Bank Limited 21,987,565 21,987,565
Non-life Insurance

Habib Insurance Company Limited 95,830 95,830
Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited 3,003 3,003
Food & Personal Care Products
Treet Corporation Limited 13,578,348 13,578,348

114,647,001 115,941,693

12.1.1 During the previous year on 29 February 2016 the high court approved the demerger of
GlaxoSmithKline (Pakistan) Limited and GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare (Pakistan) Limited
which resulted in the allotment of 03 Shares of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare (Pakistan)
Limited for every 10 shares of GlaxoSmithKline (Pakistan) Limited. The Company held 123,483
shares of GlaxoSmithKline (Pakistan) Limited and accordingly 37,044 shares of GlaxoSmithKline
Consumer Healthcare (Pakistan) Limited were allotted int the previous year. These shares were
listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange ("PSX") on 22 March 2017 and have been classified as AFS
quoted equity securities during the year by the Company.
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12.1.2 The fair value of available-for-sale investments is Rs. 221,176,934 (2016: Rs. 231,566,455 ). Subsequent
to initial recognition, these are stated at the lower of cost or market value (market value being
taken as lower if the reduction is other than temporary) in accordance with the requirements of
S.R.0. 938 dated 12 December 2002 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
However, the International Accounting Standard (IAS 39), "Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement" requires these instruments to be measured at fair value.

Had these investments been measured at fair value as required under IAS 39, their carrying values
as at 31 December 2017 would have been higher by Rs. 121,056,413 (2016: Rs. 118,109,895) and
shareholders equity would have been higher by Rs. 84,739,489(2016: Rs. 81,495,828).

.. . Principal Eff_ective Coupon Face Carrying Value
12.2 Government securities Maturity repayment| (. élzl:num) payment Value 2017 2016
Rupees

3 years Pakistan Investment Bonds July-17 On maturity 11.25%  Semi-annually 345,000,000 - 342,779,587
3 years Pakistan Investment Bonds March-18 On maturity 875%  Semiannually 17,000,000 17,049,884 17,253,849
3 years Pakistan Investment Bonds March-18 On maturity 8.75%  Semiannually 30,000,000 30,084,676 30,432,821
3 years Pakistan Investment Bonds April-19 On maturity 700%  Semi-annually 11,000,000 11,107354 11,184,036
3 years Pakistan Investment Bonds April-19 On maturity 700%  Semi-annually 12,500,000 12,611,788 12,692,047
3 years Pakistan Investment Bonds December-19 On maturity 700%  Semi-annually 3,500,000 3,541,933 -
3 years Pakistan Investment Bonds December-19 On maturity 700%  Semi-annually 75,000,000 75,795,090

5 years Pakistan Investment Bonds March-20 On maturity 925%  Semi-annually 200,000,000 210,660,280 -
Treasury Bills February-17 On maturity 6.22% On maturity 13,000,000 - 12,929,042
Treasury Bills February-17 On maturity 5.88% On maturity 71,000,000 - 70,635,107
Treasury Bills January-17 On maturity 5.86% On maturity 3,500,000 - 3,489,595
Treasury Bills February-18 On maturity 5.99% On maturity 100,000,000 99,271,429 -
Treasury Bills May-18 On maturity 6.02% On maturity 100,000,000 97,713,571

981,500,000 557,836,005 501,396,084

*These include securities having a face value of Rs. 60 million (2016: Rs. 41.5 million) which have been
deposited with the State Bank of Pakistan in compliance with the requirements of clause (a) of sub-section
2 of section 29 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

12.3 Term finance certificates

62

Number of |  Rate of Profit Face Carrying | Carrying

. return value value
certificates Value

Particulars Tenure | Maturity held  |(1per anmum) payment 2017 2016
Rupees
Bank Alfalah Limited 8 years 2017 2,000 15.00% Semi-annually 10,000,000 - 6,970,341
Bank Alfalah Limited 8 years 2017 4,000 15.00% Semi-annually 20,000,000 - 13,946,395
30,000,000 - 20,916,736
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Note 2017 2016
---------------- Rupees -
13 DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax debits / (credits) arising in respect of:
Accelerated tax depreciation on fixed assets 1,683,656 1,493,839
Provision against premium due but unpaid 20,452,060 15,971,876
Provision for diminution in value of investment 4,357,944 1,356,323
Provision against amount due from other insurers / reinsurers 12,326,220 10,761,282
38,819,880 29,583,320
Provision for employees' benefits plan (144,768) (187,602)
38,675,112 29,395,718
14 PREMIUM DUE BUT UNPAID - UNSECURED
Considered good 32,998,950 61,178,663
Considered doubtful 68,173,535 53,239,588
101,172,485 114,418,251
Provision for doubtful recoveries 14.1 (68,173,535)  (53,239,588)
32,998,950 61,178,663
14.1 Reconciliation of provision for doubtful recoveries
Opening provision 53,239,588 39,423,126
Charge for the year 14,933,947 13,816,462
Closing provision 68,173,535 53,239,588

15 AMOUNTS DUE FROM OTHER INSURERS / REINSURERS - UNSECURED

Considered good 41,852,149 33,966,669
Considered doubtful 41,087,401 35,870,941

82,939,550 69,837,610
Provision for doubtful recoveries 15.1 (41,087,401)  (35,870,941)

41,852,149 33,966,669

15.1 Reconciliation of provision for doubtful recoveries

Opening provision 35,870,941 28,354,133
Charge for the year 5,216,460 7,516,808
Closing provision 41,087,401 35,870,941

16 ACCRUED INVESTMENT INCOME

Accrued interest on Government Securities 6,429,823 19,279,678
Accrued interest on Term Finance Certificates - 237,739
Accrued interest on Term Deposit Receipts - 35,137
Dividend receivable 345,276 432,276

6,775,099 19,984,830
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REINSURANCE RECOVERIES AGAINST
OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

These are unsecured and considered good. These includes claims receivable from Pakistan Reinsurance
Company Limited (PRCL) and J.B. Boda & Co. Private Limited amounting to Rs. 127.198 million
(2016: Rs. 46.879 million ) and Rs. 72.194 million (2016: Rs. 36.311 million) respectively.

TAXATION - PAYMENTS LESS PROVISION

Balance as at 1 January

Tax paid including deducted at source
Provision for taxation

Balance as at 31 December

PREPAYMENTS

Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded

Others

SUNDRY RECEIVABLES

Advances - secured
To staff

Unsecured

Long-term security deposit
Federal insurance fee
Miscellaneous receivables

Note 2017 2016
---------------- Rupees -
37,511,437 32,381,096
11,160,126 7,186,046
(1,487,390) (2,055,705)
47,184,173 37,511,437
19,424,029 25,414,435

484,908 295,393
19,908,937 25,709,828
324,256 143,452
1,984,910 1,919,461
- 456,644

20.1 1,833,015 1,727,975
4,142,181 4,247,532

20.1 This includes Rs. 1,558,728 (2016: Rs. 1,558,728) receivable from State Life Insurance

Corporation of Pakistan (Parent Company).
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21.

FIXED ASSETS

At 1 January 2017

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2017
Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals / write-offs

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge for the year
Closing net book value

At 31 December 2017
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Depreciation rate (% per annum)

At 1 January 2016

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2016
Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals / write-offs

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge for the year
Closing net book value

At 31 December 2016
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Depreciation rate (% per annum)

Tangible Intangible
P Computers . Total
oend | Offe it Moo el Compur 00
Ixtures cquipmen accessories vehicles
----------------------------------- (Rupees)---mmmmmmmmmmmm e
14,431,026 5,077,506 8,803,973 22,578,279 4,374,547 2411912 57,677,243
(9,555,934)  (5,001,398) (8,400,588) (21,348,295)  (3,594,565)  (2,411,912) (50,312,692)
4,875,092 76,108 403,385 1,229,984 779,982 7,364,551
4,875,092 76,108 403,385 1,229,984 779,982 7,364,551
- 62,850 95,500 - 313,744 472,094
(1,051,730) (36,983) (192,772) (993,534) (340,701) (2,615,720)
3,823,362 101,975 306,113 236,450 753,025 5,220,925
14,431,026 5,140,356 8,899473 22,578,279 4,688,291 2,411,912 58,149,337
(10,607,664)  (5,038,381) (8,593,360) (22,341,829)  (3,935,266)  (2,411,912) (52,928,412)
3,823,362 101,975 306,113 236,450 753,025 5,220,925
10% 10 - 20% 20% 20% 15% 30%
14,369,371 5,077,506 8,787,773 23,984,779 4,295,247 2,411,912 58,926,588
(8,497,566)  (4,843,586) (8,163,720) (21,350,352)  (3,252,448)  (2,411,912) (48,519,584)
5,871,805 233,920 624,053 2,634,427 1,042,799 10,407,004
5,871,805 233,920 624,053 2,634,427 1,042,799 10,407,004
61,655 - 16,200 - 79,300 157,155
1,406,500 1,406,500
(1,406,500 (1,406,500)
- - - - - (325,792,200)
(1,058,368) (157,812) (236,868)  (1,404,443) (342,117 (3,199,608)
4,875,092 76,108 403,385 1,229,984 779,982 7,364,551
14,431,026 5,077,506 8,803,973 22,578,279 4,374,547 2411912 57,677,243
(9,555,934)  (5,001,398) (8,400,588) (21,348,295)  (3,594,565)  (2,411,912) (50,312,692)
4,875,092 76,108 403,385 1,229,984 779,982 7,364,551
10% 10 - 20% 20% 20% 15% 30%
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21.1 The depreciation charged during the year has been allocated as follows:

2017 2016
Note
---------------- Rupees -
Management expenses 23 1,778,690 2,175,733
General and administrative expenses 26 837,030 1,023,875
2,615,720 3,199,608
21.2 Disposal of fixed assets
Original Accumulated  Book Sale Gain / (loss) Mode of Particulars
cost depreciation  value proceeds on sale disposal of buyer
(Rupees)
Assets having Written down value
less than Rs. 50,000
2017
2016 1,406,500 1,406,500 - 552,102 552,102

ADMINISTRATIVE SURCHARGE

Premium written and net premium revenue include administrative surcharge, class wise detail of
which is given below:

Note 2017 2016

---------------- Rupees -
Fire and property damage 853,519 1,122,828
Marine, aviation And transport 758,849 930,507
Motor 917,145 917,145
Accident and health 2,000 4,000
Credit and suretyship 104,927 287,349
Miscellaneous 698,065 128,989

3,334,505 3,390,818
MANAGEMENT EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits 23.1 27,957,561 31,964,842
Rent, rates, taxes and electricity 7,087,762 7,859,939
Legal and professional charges 4,441,994 698,020
Repair and maintenance 1,447,454 2,757,762
Communication 1,062,029 961,827
Printing and stationery 1,759,003 621,758
Subscriptions 151,992 240,241
Pre inspection fee 37,546 32,195
Travelling and conveyance 3,158,173 2,812,651
Advertisement and sales promotion 989,391 328,050
Provision for doubtful recoveries 14 & 15 20,150,407 21,333,270
Depreciation 21.1 1,778,690 2,175,733
Miscellaneous expenses 2,304,000 3,492,561

72,326,002 75,278,849
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23.1 These include Rs. 362,703 (2016: Rs. 465,886) being contribution for employees' provident

fund and Rs. 243,475 (2016: Rs. 280,890) in respect of defined benefit plan.

COMMISSION FROM REINSURERS

Commission o
received ot Unearned Commission 2017 2016
receivables Opening  Closing
Rupees
Fire and property damage 6,648,111 4,222,057 2,917926 7,952,242 10,847,936
Marine, aviation and transport 2,091,227 326,504 172,092 2,245,639 2,914,751
Motor 15,317 - 9,456 5,861 1,537
Accident and health - - - - -
Credit and suretyship 845,050 459,574 356,024 948,600 746,400
Miscellaneous 356,324 745,733 194,591 907,466 1,629,517
9,956,029 5,753,868 3,650,089 12,059,808 16,140,141
Note 2017 2016
OTHERINCOME e Rupees -
Income from financial assets
Interest on savings accounts 5,037,764 2,010,322
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of fixed assets - 552,099
Miscellaneous income 18,231 125,963
18,231 678,062
5,055,995 2,688,384
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 26.1 13,156,499 15,042,277
Rent, rates, taxes and electricity 3,335,419 3,698,795
Legal and professional charges 2,090,350 428,480
Repairs and maintenance 681,157 1,297.769
Communication 499,779 452,624
Printing and stationery 827,765 292,591
Travelling and conveyance 1,486,199 1,323,600
Subscriptions 71,525 113,054
Directors' remuneration 2,410,000 750,000
Depreciation 21.1 837,030 1,023,875
Auditors' remuneration 26.2 629,750 705,377
Miscellaneous expenses 1,084,234 1,643,557
27,109,707 26,771,999
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26.1 These include Rs. 170,684 (2016: Rs. 219,240) being contribution for employees' provident
fund and Rs. 114,577 (2016: Rs. 132,183) in respect of defined benefit plan.

Note 2017 2016
---------------- Rupees -
Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 288,750 288,750
Half yearly review fee 94,500 94,500
Fee for regulatory return and Code of Corporate Governance 189,250 189,250
Out of pocket expenses 57,250 132,877
629,750 705,377
TAXATION
Current 1,487,390 1,527,704
Prior - 528,001
Deferred (9,236,560) (5,638,368)
271 (7749,170)  (3,582,663)
27.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Loss before taxation (67,595,316) (19,057,227)
Effects of:
Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2016: 31%) (20,278,595) (5,907,740)
Tax impact of change in rate of tax (8,287) (1,280,764)
Prior year tax charge - 528,001
Tax effect of Minimum Tax 1,487,390 1,527,704
Deferred tax asset not booked on taxable losses 11,050,322 1,550,136
(7,749,170 (3,582,663

27.2 Contingencies in respect of taxation have been disclosed in note 10.1.2.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

28.1 Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year by the weighted average

number of shares as at the year end as follows:

Loss after tax for the year

2017

(59,846,146)

2016

(15,474,564)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 44,717,808 40,360,000
------------ Rupee ------------
Basic loss per share (1.34) (0.38)
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28.2 Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any
convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding on 31 December 2017 and 2016
which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan being the parent company,
companies having directors in common, key management personnel, gratuity fund and provident fund.
Transactions with these related parties (other than remuneration of key management personnel which
is disclosed in note 32) are as follows:

Post employment

Parent benefit plans

2017 2016 2017 2016

Rupees

Transactions during the year

Rent expense 2,667,588 4,167,896

Rent paid 707750 4,167,896 .
Charge in respect of provident fund - - 533,387 685,126
Charge in respect of gratuity fund - - 358,052 413,073
Contribution to provident fund - - 685,126 685,126

Balances as at year end
Receivable from State Life Insurance
Corporation of Pakistan 1,558,728 1,558,728

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN - STAFF RETIREMENT GRATUITY
30.1 General description

The Company operates an approved gratuity fund established in 1982 for its permanent employees
who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service of five years. The Fund is administered
by the Trustees in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed and contributions therein are
made in accordance with actuarial reccommendations. The most recent valuation in this regard was
carrig,d out as at 31 December 2017, using the Projected Unit Credit Method for valuation of the
Fund.

The Company faces the following risks on account of the gratuity fund.

(@) Mortality risks: This is the risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect
depends on the beneficiaries' service / age distribution and the benefit.

(b) Investment risks: This is the risk of investment under-performing and being insufficient to
meet liabilities.

(c) Final salary risks: This is the risk that the final salary at the time of the cessation of service
is greater than what was initially assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary,
the benefit amount increases similarly.
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(d) Withdrawal risks: This is the risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The
ﬁna{) effect could go either way depending on the beneficiaries' services / age distribution and
the benefit.

30.2 Principal actuarial assumptions

2017 2016
Discount rate 9.50% 9.05%
Expected rate of salary increase 9.00% 9.00%
Mortality rates 60 years 60 years
Rate of employee turnover SLIC (2001-05)-1 Light ~ SLIC (2001-05)-1 Light

Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with
published statistics and experience in Pakistan. The rates assumed are based on the adjusted SLIC
2001 - 2005 ultimate mortality tables.

2017 2016
. L e Rupees -
30.3 Amount recognised in the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligations 5,524,244 4,792,675
Fair value of plan assets (6,889,641) (6,658,904)

(1,365,397) — (1,866,229)

The movement in the defined benefit obligation during the year is as follows:

2017
Present value of ~ Fair value
defined benefit of plan Total
obligation assets
--------------- Rupees ---------------
As at 1 January 4,792,675 (6,658,904) (1,866,229)
Current service cost 511,594 - 511,594
Interest expense / (income) 456,358 (609,900) (153,542)
5,760,627 (7,268,804) (1,508,177)
Remeasurements:

- Loss on plan assets - 253,919 253,919
- (Gain) / loss from change in demographic assumptions - - -

- Gain due to change in financial assumptions - -
- Gain due to change in experience adjustment (111,139 - (111,139
(111,139) 253,919 142,780

5,649,488 (7,014,885) (1,365,397)
Contributions made - - -
Benefits paid (125,244) 125,244 -
As at 31 December 5,524,244 (6,889,641) (1,365,397)
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30.4

30.5

30.6

As at 1 January
Current service cost
Interest expense / (income)

Remeasurements:

- Loss on plan assets

- (Gain) / loss from change in demographic assumptions
- Gain due to change in financial assumptions

- Gain due to change in experience adjustment

Contributions made
Benefits paid
As at 31 December

Amount recognised in the profit and loss account

Current service cost

Interest expense on defined benefit obligation
Interest income on plan assets

Cost recognised in the profit and loss account

Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Remeasurement gains on obligation
- Gain due to change in financial assumptions
- Gain due to change in experience adjustments

Remeasurement loss on plan assets
- Actual return on plan assets
- Interest income on plan assets

Analysis of present value of defined benefit obligation

Vested / Non vested
- Vested benefits

- Non-vested benefits
Total

Types of benefits

- Accumulated benefit obligation

- Amounts attributed to future salary increases
Total

2016
Present value of ~ Fair value
defined benefit of plan Total
obligation assets
------------- Rupees -------mmmmmmo-

6,314,730 (8,503,939) (2,189,209)
601,792 - 601,792
579,061 (767,780) (188,719)
7,495,583 (9,271,719)  (1,776,136)
- 248,840 248,840

12,211 - 12,211
(351,144) - (351,144)
(338,933) 248,840 (90,093)
7,156,650 (9,022,879)  (1,866,229)

(2,363,975) 2,363,975 -
4,792,675 (6,658,904)  (1,866,229)
2017 2016

---------------- Rupees -

511,594 601,792

456,358 579,061
(609,900) (767,780)

358,052 413,073

- 12,211
(111,139) (351,144)
(111,139) (338,933)
(355,981) (518,939)

609,900 767,780

253,919 248,841
142,780 (90,092)

5,359,789 4,508,982

164,455 283,693

5,524,244 4,792,675

2,386,808 2,065,240

3,137,436 2,727435

5,524,244 4,792,675
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30.7 Composition of plan assets

30.8

Market treasury bills
Bank balance
Accrued interest income

Payable to outgoing employees

2017 2016
(Rupees) % (Rupees) %
- 0.00% 7,259,165 91.77%
7,188,477 96.56% 547,914 8.23%
256,164 3.44% - 0.00%
7,444,641 100.00% 7,807,079 100.00%
(555,000) (1,148,175)
6,889,641 6,658,904

The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation to changes in principal actuarial assumptions

1s as follows:

----- — As at December 31, 2017 ——

Change i Increase / (decrease) in present Chanee Increase / (decrease) in present
Particulars ANgEIM | yalue of defined benefit obligation AN 1 yalue of defined benefit obligation
assumption assumption
(%) | Rupees (%) l Rupees
Discount rate +1.00% -9.92% (547,759) +0.5% -10.03% (480,669)
-1.00% 11.77% 650,070 -0.5% 11.95% 572,660
Long-term salary increase rate +1.00% 12.22% 675,093 +0.5% 12.40% 594,359
-1.00% -10.46% (577,592) -0.5% -10.57% (506,583)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
assumptions, same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating

the gratuity asset.

30.9 The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 10.75 years (2016: 10.92 years).

30.10 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefit obligation for the gratuity fund is as

72

follows:

Particulars

Distribution of timing of
payment of benefits

Particulars

Distribution of timing of
payment of benefits

2017
Between Between Between Total
0-1 years 2-4 years 5-10 years
--------------------- Rupees----mmrrmmmmmmcnnnns
785,699 415,680 4,473,479 5,674,858
2016
Between Between Between
Total
0-1 years 2-4 years 5-10 years
--------------------- Rupees-----mrmmmmmommmnnnns
66,548 1,402,464 3,179,201 4,648,213
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
30.11 Historical information Rupees

Present value of defined

benefit obligation 5,524,244 47792,675 6,314,730 7,574,024 7,107,817 5,892,236
Fair value of plan assets ~ (6,889,641) (6,658,904) (8,503,939) (9,706,447) (9,436,581)  (9,338,137)
Surplus (1,365,397) (1,866,229) (2,189,209) (2,132,423) (2,328,764)  (3,445,901)
Remeasurements of plan

liabilities (111,139)  (338,933) 723,348 564,706  (418,151)  (326,149)
Remeasurements of

plan assets 253,919 248,841 221,555 453,841 (348,158) (65,284)

30.12 Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis and are based on actuarial recommendations. The
expected gratuity expense for the next year commencing 1 January 2018 works out to be Rs. 375,172
(2017: Rs. 230,281) as per the actuarial valuation report of the Company as of 31 December 2017.

30.13 The disclosures made in notes 30.1 to 30.12 are based on the information included in the actuarial
valuation report of the fund as of 31 December 2017.

31 PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The Company has set up provident fund for its permanent employees and the contributions were
made by the Company to the Fund in accordance with the requirements of Section 227 of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The total charge against provident fund for the year ended
31 December 2017 was Rs. 533,387 (2016: Rs. 685,126).

The following information is based on the un-audited financial statements of the Fund as at 31

December 2017.
2017 2016
---------------- Rupees -
Size of the fund - Total assets 31,055,250 33,336,983
Fair value of investments 30,125,972 32,086,284
Percentage of investments made 97% 96%

31.1 The cost of above investments amounted to Rs. 30.428 million (2016: Rs 33.225 million).

31.2 The break-up of fair values of investments is as follows:

2017 2016 2017 2016
Percentage @~ - Rupees ----mm-mx
Treasury Bills 16.57% 51.50% 4,991,764 16,524,300
Pakistan Investment Bonds 83.43% 48.50% 25,134,208 15,561,984

100.00% 100.00% 30,125,972 32,086,284
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31.3 The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of
Section 227 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND DIRECTORS

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements for remuneration, including certain benefits,
to the Chief Executive and Directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

Chief Executive Officer Directors Executive Total
2017 | 2016 2017 | 2016 2017 [ 2016 2017 | 2016
- -Rupees-- - - -
Managerial remuneration 3,562,000 5,321,267 8,276,268 11,973,348 11,838,268 17,294,615
Fee for attending board meeting - 2,410,000 750,000 2,410,000 750,000
Conveyance allowance - 562,852 778905 562,852 778,905
Housing and utilities - - 2,049,861 1,992,064 2,049,861 1,992,064
Others 42,500 208,333 1,332,086 584,800 1,374,586 793,133
3,604,500 5,529,600 2,410,000 750,000 12,221,067 15,329,117 18,235,567 21,608,717
Number of persons 1 1 7 7 14 15

The Chief Executive officer and some of the executives are also provided with free use of Company maintained
car. Executives means employees other than chief executive and directors, whose basic salary exceeds five hundred
thousand rupees in a financial year.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has six primary business segments for reporting purposes namely fire and property damage,
marine, aviation and transport, motor, accident and health, credit and suretyship and miscellaneous.

Assets and liabilities, wherever possible, have been assigned to the following segments based on specific
identification or allocated on the basis of the gross premium written by the segments.

-------------------------------------------------- 7
Fire and Marine, . .
property | aviationand |  Motor Accident | - Credit ar}d Miscellaneous|  Total
q and Health | suretyship
amage transport
-------------------------------------------------- Rupees--srmmmmmmmmmm e
Segment assets 346,185,453 17416,611 9,981,647 2,949,658 2,756,104 6,094,226 385,383,699
Unallocated corporate assets 936,704,436
Consolidated total assets 1,322,088,135
Segment liabilities 436,314,194 18,430,423  27517,035 6,661,229 2,794,333 11,020,142 502,737,356

Unallocated corporate liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

162,998,879
665,736,235
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-------------------------------------------------- 201 §emremremmmmmremrenmeemeemneemenmeerenmnaeeas
Fire and Marine, . .
property | aviationand |  Motor Agc;;ietlltth Credit ;llll.ld Miscellaneous|  Total
damage transport and Hea suretyship
-------------------------------------------------- Rupees-mmmmmmmmmmmme oo
Segment assets 135,766,881 25,485,179 16,402,880 282,237 2,634,144 56,621,257 237,192,578
Unallocated corporate assets 868,341,436
Consolidated total assets 1,105,534,014
Segment liabilities 134,867,601 22,691,772 37830,527 4,185,542 2,322,727 75,235,738 277,133,907
Unallocated corporate liabilities 208,502,115
Consolidated total liabilities 485,636,022
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
2017
. Loans and Held-to- Available-
Particulars . . Total
receivables  maturity for sale
Rupees
Financial assets
Cash and bank deposits 133,047,960 - - 133,047,960
Investments - 557,836,005 100,120,527 657,956,532
Premium due but unpaid 32,998,950 - - 32,998,950
Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers 41,852,149 41,852,149
Accrued investment income 6,775,099 6,775,099
Reinsurance recoveries against
outstanding claims 325,792,200 325,792,200
Sundry receivables 4,142,181 - - 4,142,181
544,608,539 557,836,005 100,120,527 1,202,565,071
2017
Particulars At fair value At amortised Total
through cost
profit or loss
---------------- Rupees -----eemmemnea-
Financial liabilities
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 430,990,074 430,990,074
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers 80,394,400 80,394,400
Accrued expenses 33,288,579 33,288,579
Unclaimed dividend 3,011,260 3,011,260
Other creditors and accruals 25,777,031 25,777,031
573,461,344 573,461,344
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2016
Parti Loans and Held-to- Available-
articulars . . Total
receivables  maturity for sale

Financial assets Rupees
Cash and bank deposits 97,320,693 - - 97,320,693
Investments - 522,312,820 114,075,564 636,388,384
Premium due but unpaid 61,178,663 - - 61,178,663
Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers 33,966,669 - - 33,966,669
Accrued investment income 19,984,830 - - 19,984,830
Reinsurance recoveries against

outstanding claims 137,403,653 - - 137,403,653
Sundry receivables 3,790,888 3,790,888

353,645,396 522,312,820 114,075,564 990,033,780

2016

At fair value At amortised Total
through cost
profit or loss

Particulars

---------------- Rupees ------mmemvmenee
Financial liabilities
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) - 198,988,834 198,988,834
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers - 103,075,459 103,075,459
Accrued expenses - 34,608,813 34,608,813
Unclaimed dividend - 3,011,260 3,011,260
Other creditors and accruals - 24,136,697 24,136,697

- 363,821,063 363,821,063

35 MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE RISK
35.1 Financial risk

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including yield /
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk that could result
in reduction in the Company's net assets or a reduction in the profits available for dividends. The
Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance. The Board
of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's
risk management framework and is responsible for developing and monitoring risk management
policies.

35.1.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.
The objective is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the return. The Company manages market risk by monitoring exposures in related
securities by following internal risk management policies.

Market risk comprises of three types of risks: yield / interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and price
risk.
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35.1.1.1 Yield / interest rate risk

Yield / interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments
will fluctuate because of changes in market yield / interest rates. The Company is exposed to yield
/ interest rates risk in respect of the following:

2017

Effective rate

Interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments

Particulars ) Maturity Maturity Sub Non-interest /
(% per annum) up to after T(l)lta-l mark-up bearing Total
one year one year financial instruments
------------------------------------- Rupees----sommmmmmmiiii e
Financial assets
Cash and bank deposits 3.75-4.25 128,740,831 - 128,740,831 4,307,129 133,047,960
[nvestments 5.86-11.75 47,134,560 510,701,445 557,836,005 100,120,527 657,956,532
Premium due but unpaid - unsecured - - - 32,998,950 32,998,950
Amounts due from other
insurers / reinsurers - unsecured 41,852,149 41,852,149
Accrued investment income 6,775,099 6,775,099
Reinsurance recoveries against
outstanding claims 325,792,200 325,792,200
Sundry receivables - - - 4,142,181 4,142,181
175,875,391 510,701,445 686,576,836 515,988,235 1,202,565,071
Financial liabilities
Provision against outstanding claims 430,990,074 430,990,074
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers 80,394,400 80,394,400
Accrued expenses 33,288,579 33,288,579
Other creditors and accruals 25,777,031 25,777,031
570,450,084 570,450,084
Interest risk sensitivity gap 175,875,391 510,701,445 686,576,836 (54,461,849) 632,114,987
Cumulative interest risk sensitivity gap 175,875,391 686,576,336
2016
] Interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments
Particulars ‘F ffective rate Maturity Maturity Sub Non-interest /
(% per annum) up to after Tu l mark-up bearing Total
one year one year ota financial instruments
------------------------------------- Rupees-------mmmmmmmmmmiiee oo
Financial assets
Cash and bank deposits 3.93-4.58 92,714,039 - 92,714,039 4,606,654 97,320,693
Investments 5.86-15.00 450,750,067 71,562,753 522,312,820 114,075,564 636,388,384
Premium due but unpaid - - - 61,178,663 61,178,663
Amounts due from other
insurers / reinsurers 33,966,669 33,966,669
Accrued investment income 19,984,830 19,984,830
Reinsurance recoveries against
outstanding claims 137,403,653 137,403,653
Sundry receivables - - - 3,790,888 3,790,388
543,464,106 71,562,753 615,026,859 375,006,921 990,033,780
Financial liabilities
Provision against outstanding claims 198,988,834 198,988,834
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers 103,075,459 103,075,459
Accrued expenses 34,608,813 34,608,813
Other creditors and accruals 24,136,697 24,136,697
360,309,803 360,309,803
Interest risk sensitivity gap 543,464,106 71,562,753 615,026,859 14,197,118 629,223,977
Cumulative interest risk sensitivity gap 543,464,106 615,026,859
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to possible changes in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Company's profit for the year before tax and shareholders' equity
based upon average balances and rates:

Increase / Decrease in Effect on profit Effect on
basis points before tax shareholders equity
-------------------------- Rupees --emememeormrmmenenees
31 December 2017 100 (100) 6865768  (6,865768) 4,806,038 (4,806,038)
31 December 2016 100 (100) 6,150,269 (6,150,269) 4,243,685 (4,243,685)

35112 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company, at present, is not materially
exposed to currency risk as majority of the transactions are carried out in Pakistani Rupees.

35.1.13 Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in the market prices (other than those arising from interest / mark up rate risk or currency
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument
or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar financial instruments traded in the market. Company
is exposed to equity price risk since it has investments in quoted equity securities amounting to
Rs. 100.121 million (2016: Rs. 113.457 million) at the reporting date. The Company manages price
risk by actively monitoring exposure in its quoted equity securities and by diversification of its
equity portfolio.

The following table summarizes the Company's other price risk as at 31 December 2017 and as at
31 December 2016. It shows the effects of an estimated increase of 5% in the market prices as on
those dates. A decrease of 5% in the fair values of the quoted securities would affect it in a similar
and opposite manner.

Fair value Price change  Effect on fair value
~(Rupees)- wore Ofg e ~(Rupees)-
31 December 2017 221,176,934 +5% 11,058,847
5% (11,058,847)
31 December 2016 231,566,455 +5% 11,578,323
-5% (11,578,323)

However, increase of 5% in equity prices at the reporting date is restricted to amount of cost of
investment of such securities as per the policy of the Company (note 4.8.1.3).
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35.1.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will
fail to discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company
attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a
large number of counterparties in various industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness
of these counterparties.

35121 Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business
activities. As a result, any change in economic, political or other conditions effects their ability to
meet contractual obligations in a similar manner. The Company's exposure to credit risk is not
significantly different from that reflected in the financial statements. The management monitors
and limits the Company's exposure to credit risk through monitoring of client's exposure and
conservative estimates of provisions for doubtful assets, if any. The management is of the view that
it is not exposed to significant concentration of credit risk as its financial assets are adequately
diversified in entities of sound financial standing, covering various industrial sectors.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, as specified below:

2017 2016

---------------- Rupees -
Bank deposits 133,047,960 97,320,693
Investments - 20,916,736
Premium due but unpaid 32,998,950 61,178,663
Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers 41,852,149 33,966,669
Accrued investment income - 237,739
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 325,792,200 137,403,653
Sundry receivables 4,142,181 4,247,532

The Company did not hold any collateral against the above during the year. The management
continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the policyholders and other insurers / reinsurers
and makes provision against those balances considered doubtful of recovery. During the year
receivables of Rs. 20,150,407 (2016: Rs. 21,333,270) were further impaired. The movement in the
provision for doubtful debt account is shown in note 14 and 15. The remaining past due balances
were not impaired as they relate to a number of policy holders and other insurers / reinsurers for
whom there is no recent history of default.
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35.1.22 Credit quality of financial assets

80

The credit quality of the Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit
ratings as follows:

. Ratin . 2017
Particulars Short term : Long term Rating Agency Rupees
Bank balances
National Bank of Pakistan Limited AAA 7 AAA Al+/ A-1+ PACRA/ JCR-VIS 565,295
Allied Bank Limited AA+ Al+ PACRA 139,852
MCB Bank Limited AAA Al+ PACRA 49,546
Soneri Bank Limited AA- Al+ PACRA 92,539
United Bank Limited AAA A-1+ JCR-VIS 131,536,108
JS Bank Limited AA- Al+ PACRA 465,859
132,849,199
. Rating . 2016
Particulars Short term | Long term Rating Agency Rupees
Bank balances
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 129,391
JS Bank Limited Al+ A+ PACRA 89,393
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 37,553
National Bank of Pakistan Al+/A-1+ AAA/AAA PACRA/ JCR-VIS 181,712
NIB Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA 120,925
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA 44223
United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 21,490,991

22,094,188

An analysis of the age of premiums due but unpaid that are past due but not impaired are as under:

2017 2016
--------------- Rupees -
Upto 30 days 2,226,418 3,112,795
31 to 180 days 4,891,061 21,599,752
Over 180 days 25,881,471 36,466,116

32,998,950 61,178,663
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The credit quality of amount due from other insurers and reinsurers can be assessed with reference
to external credit ratings as follows:

Reinsurance
Amount due . Oth
from other | Tecoveries | Other
insurers / against | reinsurance 2017 2016
. outstanding asset
reinsurers .
claims
----------------------- (Rupees)-----mmmmmmmmmmmannnans
A or above 14,239,388 143,287,842 157,527,230 60,648,192
A- 4,080,609 113,765,595 117,846,204 13,091,050
BB 374,643 41,040,264 41,414,907 2,893,387
Others 23,157,509 27,698,499 50,856,008 94,737,693
Total 41,852,149 325,792,200 367,644,349 171,370,322

Age analysis of amount due from other insurers / reinsurers at the reporting date was:

2017 2016
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
---------- (Rupees)----=---+-  ----------(Rupees)----------
Upto 1 year 28,379,713 10,670,080 -
1-2 years 19,974,982 - 16,058,705 -
Over 2-3years 34,584,855 41,087,401 43,108,825 35,870,941
82,939,550 41,087,401 69,837,610 35,870,941

Age analysis of reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims at the reporting date was:

2017 2016
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
---------- (Rupees)---------- ----------(Rupees)----------
Upto 1 year 234,938,025 - 59,554,341 -
1-2 years 56,802,012 - 46,108,063
Over 2 years 34,052,163 - 31,741,249
325,792,200 - 137,403,653

In respect of the aforementioned insurance and reinsurance assets, the Company takes into account its past
history / track record of recoveries and financial position of the counterparties while creating provision for
impairment. Further, reinsurance recoveries are made when corresponding liabilities are settled.
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35.1.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting payment obligations
when they fall due under normal circumstances or can only settle liabilities on terms that are
materially disadvantageous. To guard against the risk, the Company ensures diversified funding
sources, maintains adequate balances in cash and cash equivalents and invests in readily marketable
securities. The maturity profile of assets and liabilities are also monitored to ensure adequate liquidity
is maintained at all times.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date on an undiscounted
cash flow basis. Financial liabilities not having any contractual maturities are assumed to mature
on the expected date on which these liabilities will be settled.

2017
L Over one
Within year to five Over five Total
one year years years
Financial liabilites (Rupees)-wrrrmrrreer
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 430,990,074 - - 430,990,074
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers 80,394,400 - - 80,394,400
Accrued expenses 33,288,579 - - 33,288,579
Other creditors and accruals 25,777,031 - - 25,777,031
570,450,084 - - 570,450,084
2016
o Over one
Within year to five Over five Total
one year years years
Financial liabilitles T (Rupees)-rrmrmmrmoe
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 198,988,834 - - 198,988,834
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers 103,075,459 - - 103,075,459
Accrued expenses 34,608,813 - - 34,608,813
Other creditors and accruals 24,136,697 - - 24,136,697
360,809,803 - - 360,309,803

35.2 Insurance risk

The risk under any insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty in the amount of compensation to the insured. Generally, most insurance contracts
carry the insurance risk for a period of one year. (refer note 4.2).

The Company accepts insurance through issuance of general insurance contracts. For these general
insurance contracts the most significant risks arise from fire, atmospheric disturbance, earthquake,
terrorist activities and other catastrophes. For health insurance contracts, significant risks arise from
epidemics.

The Company’s risk exposure is mitigated by employing a comprehensive framework to identify,
assess, manage and monitor risk. This framework includes implementation of underwriting strategies
which aim to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and amount
of the risk. Adequate reinsurance is arranged to mitigate the effect of the potential loss to the

82




lipha

Insurance Company Limited.

A subsidiary of State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

Company from individual to large or catastrophic insured events. Further, the Company adopts
strict claim review policies including active management and prompt pursuing of the claims, regular
detailed review of claim handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible false claims
to reduce the insurance risk.

35.2.1 Frequency and severity of claims

Risk associated with general insurance contracts includes the reasonable possibility of significant
loss as well as the frequent occurrence of the insured events. This has been managed by having in
place underwriting strategy, reinsurance arrangements and proactive claim handling procedures.

2017 2016

The Company's class wise major risk exposure is as follows:

Fire and property damage 29,091 47,407
Marine, aviation and transport 14,575 13,988
Motor 796 1,288
Accidental, health and others 2,346 7.838
Credit and suretyship 579 611

The reinsurance arrangements against major risk exposures include excess of loss, surplus arrangements
and catastrophic coverage. The objective of having such arrangements is to mitigate adverse impacts
of severe losses on the Company’s net retentions.

35.2.2 Uncertainty in the estimation of future claims payment

Claims on general insurance contracts are payable on a claim occurrence basis. The Company is
liable for all insured events that occur during the term of the insurance contract including the event
reported after the expiry of the insurance contract.

An estimated amount of the claim is recorded immediately on the intimation to the Company.
The estimation of the amount is based on the amount notified by policy holders, management's
judgment or preliminary assessment by an independent surveyor appointed for this purpose. The
initial estimates include expected settlement cost of these claims. The estimation of provision of
claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is based on the recommendation of the actuary.

There are several variable factors which affect the amount and timing of recognised claim liabilities.
The Company takes all reasonable measures to identify and account for the factors affecting the
amount and timing of claim settlements. However, uncertainty prevails with estimated claim
liabilities and it is likely that final settlement of these liabilities may be different from the initially
recognised amount. Similarly, provision for claims incurred but not reported is based on a “Chain
Ladder Method” as describe in note 4.2.3.1. Hence, actual amount of claims incurred but not
reported may differ from the amount estimated.

35.2.3 Sensitivity analysis

The risks associated with the insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables
which complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. The Company makes various assumptions and
uses techniques based on past claims development experience. This includes indications such as
average claims cost, ultimate claims numbers and expected loss ratios. The Company considers that
the liability for insurance claims recognised in the balance sheet is adequate. However, actual
experience will differ from the expected outcome.
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As the Company mostly enters into short-term insurance contracts, it does not assume any significant
impact of changes in market conditions on unexpired risks. However, some results of sensitivity
testing are set out below and show effects on profit before tax net of reinsurance. These effects have
been worked out on the assumption that increase / decrease in net claims expense pertains to
individual segment in isolation.

Pre tax profit Shareholders' equity

10% increase in net claims (i.e. loss) 20l 206 2017 2016

-------------------- Rupees------mmmmmmmmmmnee-
Fire and property damage (6,433,316)  (770,751) (4,503,321)  (531,818)
Marine, aviation and transport (435,647)  (224,633)  (304,953) (154,997
Motor (782,133)  (926702)  (547493)  (639.424)
Accident and health (697,161)  (772,126)  (488,013)  (532,767)

Credit and suretyship - - - -
Miscellaneous (586,178) (2,077,669)  (410,325) (1,433,592)
(8934,435) (771,881) (6,254,105) (3,292,599)
Pre tax profit Shareholders' equity

2017 2016 2017 2016

10% decrease in net claims (i.e. profity 01T 1 F———
Fire and property damage 6433316 770751 4503321 531,818
Marine, aviation and transport 435,647 224,633 304,953 154,997
Motor 782,133 926,702 547493 639,424
Accident and health 697,161 772,126 488,013 532,767

Credit and suretyship - - - -
Miscellaneous 586,178 2,077,669 410,325 1,433,592

8,934,435 4,771,881 6,254,105 3,292,598

35.2.4 Claims development tables

The development of all claims against insurance contracts written is not disclosed as uncertainty
about the amount and timing of claim settlement is usually resolved within one year. However,
all material claims for which there is still uncertainty about the amount and timing of claim's
payment are presented below in gross amount. The table below illustrate, how the estimatess of
these material claims for each accident year has changed at successive year-ends.

Analysis of claims on a gross basis

Accident year 2012& 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017  Total
prior

Bstimate of ultimate claims cost: Rupeessomememasmasrararemrenceeees
At end of accident year 285,125,677 105,379,622 101,866,074 78,189,400 171,160,863 336,709,438 1,078,431,074
One year later 302,203,637 115,093,951 131,810,963 74,834,143 188,326,799 - 812,269,493
Two years later 240,956,536 115,833,564 136,323,770 73,596,851 - 566,710,721
Three years later 238,687,502 117,293,388 136,789,262 - - 492,710,152
Four years later 227204,246 115,249,908 - - - - 342,454,154
Five years later 234,993,597 - - - - - 234,993,597

Estimate of cumulative claims 234,993,597 115,249,908 136,789,262 73,596,851 188,326,799 336,709,438 1,085,665,855
Cumulative payments to date (196,898,979) (110,745,198) (127,568,167)  (69,620,673)(124,133,416) (25,709,348) (654,675,781)

Liability recognised in the
balance sheet 38,094,618 4504710 9,221,095 3,976,178 64,193,383 311,000,090 430,990,074
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35.2.5 Reinsurance arrangements

Keeping in view the maximum exposure in respect of key zone aggregates, a number of proportional
and non-proportional reinsurance arrangements are in place to protect the net account in case of
a major catastrophe. Apart from the adequate event limit which is a multiple of the treaty capacity
or the primary recovery from the proportional treaty, any loss over and above the said limit would
be recovered from the non-proportional treaty which is very much in line with the risk management

philosophy of the Company.

In compliance of the regulatory requirement, the reinsurance agreements are duly submitted to the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan on an annual basis.

The Company’s class wise risk exposure (based on maximum loss coverage in a single policy) is as

follows:

Fire and property damage
Marine, aviation and transport
Motor

Accident and health

Credit and suretyship
Miscellaneous

Fire and property damage
Marine, aviation and transport
Motor

Accident and health

Credit and suretyship
Miscellaneous

2017
Maximum  Reinsurance  Highest net
sum insured cover liability
Rupees

2,788,146,461  2,783,146,461 5,000,000
98,081,500 93,081,500 5,000,000
16,500,000 15,800,000 700,000
10,000,000 - 10,000,000
57,158,117 53,158,117 4,000,000
20,000,000 18,775,000 1,225,000

2,989,886,078  2,963,961,078 25,925,000

2016
Maximum  Reinsurance  Highest net
sum insured cover liability
------------------ Rupees-——-mmmmmmerremr

3,354,655,950  3,060,655,950 294,000,000
164,053,478 159,053,478 5,000,000
9,000,000 8,300,000 700,000
20,000,000 - 20,000,000
57,158,117 53,158,117 4,000,000
1,060,000,000 989,000,000 71,000,000

4,664,867,545  4,270,167,545 394,700,000
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35.2.6 Geographical concentration of insurance risk

To optimise benefits from the principle of averages and law of large numbers, geographical
spread of risk is of extreme importance. There are a number of parameters which are significant
in assessing the accumulation of risks with reference to the geographical location. Risk surveys
are carried out on a regular basis for the evaluation of physical hazards associated with the
location, occupation and coverage of the insured.

The ability to manage catastrophic risk is tied to managing the density of risk within a particular
area. It provides a way to better visualise the risk exposures so the Company determines the
appropriate amount of reinsurance coverage to protect the business portfolio.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences may arise
between the carrying values and the fair values estimates.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the
level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company currently meets the minimum paid-up capital requirement i.e. Rs. 500 million as
required by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpose
of comparison and better presentation. No significant rearrangement or reclassification has been
made in these financial statements during the current year.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no events subsequent to the reporting date that require adjustments or disclosures in
these financial statements.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
2017 2016
(Number)
As at 31 December 61 63
DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 9th May, 2018 by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

GENERAL

All figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee, unless otherwise stated.

wid g ke

Chief Executive Chairman .~Difector “ rector
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Pattern of Shareholding

As at December 31, 2017

Number of Shareholdings Total
Shareholders From To Shares Held
3 1 to 100 193
3 101 to 500 888
15 501 to 1,000 12,284
17 1,001 to 5,000 48,037
20 5,001 to 10,000 132,923
22 10,001 to 25,000 299,255
5 25,001 to 50,000 147,746
7 50,001 to 75,000 431,325
3 75,001 to 100,000 234,036
1 100,001 to 150,000 101,615
4 150,001 to 205,000 809,600
1 205,001 to 300,000 207,255
1 300,001 to 47,574,843 47,574,843
102 50,000,000
Shareholdor Category of Sharcholders ShaeoHeld | ap
1 47,574,843 95.15%
1 12,631 0.03%
100 2,412,526 4.83%
102 50,000,000 100.00%
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BRANCHES

MAIN BRANCH, KARACHI
406, 4th Floor,

Business & Finance Centre,

Opp: State Bank of Pakistan,

LI Chundrigar Road,

Karachi.

Ph: 021-32429151, 021-32425547
Fax: 021-32435142

E-mail: reyaz@alphainsurance.com.pk

TOWER BRANCH

4th Floor Building # 1-B,

State Life Square,

Off: 1.I.Chundrigar Road,

Karachi.

PABX: 021-32416041-5

Fax: 021-32422470

E-mail: malik.alphainsurance@yahoo.com

CENTRAL BRANCH

4th Floor Building # 1-B,

State Life Square,

Off: 1.I.Chundrigar Road,

Karachi.

PABX: 021-32416041-45

Fax:  021-32419968, 32422478-9
E-mail: centralbranch@alphainsurance.com.pk

CORPORATE BRANCH
State Life Building No. 3,
Ground Floor,

Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road,
Karachi.

HYDERABAD

Church Building, Tilak Incline,
Hyderabad.

Ph: 022-2621938

Fax: 022-2618867

QUETTA

Gul Complex, 1st/2nd Floor,
Office No. 2, 4, M.A. Jinnah Road,
Quetta.

Ph: 081-2866176

Fax: 081-2866176

REGIONAL OFFICES

GENERAL MANAGER &
REGIONAL CHIEF (NORTHERN)
Ground Floor, State Life Building - 5,
China Chowk, Jinnah Avenue,

Blue Area,

Islamabad.

Ph: 051-2274032-34

Fax: 051-2274964

E-mail: raza@alphainsurance.com.pk

BRANCHES

ISLAMABAD

Ground Floor, State Life Building - 5,
China Chowk, Jinnah Avenue,

Blue Area,

Islamabad.

Ph: 051-2274032-34

Fax: 051-2274964

PESHAWAR

Room # 7, 1st Floor,

Khair Mohammad Plaza,

Opp: State Bank of Pakistan,

Peshawar Cantt.

Ph: 091-5261691

Fax: 091-5261692

E-mail: hamzullah@alphainsurance.com.pk

GENERAL MANAGER &
REGIONAL CHIEF (CORPORATE)
2nd Floor, State Life Building # 8,
Kashmir Road,

Rawalpindi Cantt.

Ph: 051-5568349, 051-5562249

Fax: 051-5519201

E-mail: manzoor@alphainsurance.com.pk

GENERAL MANAGER &
REGIONAL CHIEF (CENTRAL)
Cooperative Building,
23-Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam,

Lahore.

Ph: 042-37232136-7

Fax: 042-37232138

E-mail: nadeemsafdar@alphainsurance.com.pk

BRANCHES

BANK SQUARE LAHORE
4-Bank Square,
Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam,

P. O. Box # 125,

Lahore.

Ph: 042-37322518, 042-37311618
Fax: 042-37324628

FAISALABAD

6th Floor, State Life Building,
Liaquat Road,

Faisalabad.

Ph: 041-2640383

Fax: 041-2640384

MULTAN

1st Floor, Room,

Khilji Arcade Centre,

Kutchery Road,

Multan.

Tel: 061-4510694

Fax: 061-4541649

E-mail: riazahmed@alphainsurance.com.pk

BAHAWALPUR

1st Floor, Shah Din Plaza,

Outside Farid Road,

Stadium Road,

Bahawalpur.

Ph: 062-2874236

Fax: 062-2884090

Fax: 062-2887761

E-mail: aminriffat@alphainsurance.com.pk

SAHIWAL

Green View Center,
Stadium Road,
Sahiwal.

Ph: 040-4463870
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PROXY FORM

Annual General Meeting

L/ e Of t e being a member of
Alpha Insurance Company Limited hereby appoint Mr..........cocoiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Of e of failing him Mr.........cooooiiiiiii
OF et as my/our Proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our

behalf at the 66th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 31st day of May, 2018 at
04:00 p.m. at Company's Head Office, 4th Floor, Building No. 1-B, State Life Square, I.I. Chundrigar
Road, Karachi and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this.......c.vvviiiiiiii day Of .o 2018

1. Witness:

Revenue
Stamp

Slgnature ....................................................... Slgnature .................................
Name ..o Holder of............... Ordinary Shares
AddI‘CSS ......................................................... Share Register Follo NO ................

Note:
1. A Proxy must be member of the Company.

2. Proxies must be received at the Registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for the Meeting.

The signature of the instrument of proxy must confirm to the specimen signature recorded with the
Company.
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4th Floor, Building 1-B, State Life Square, 1. Chundrigar Road, Karachi - Pakistan.
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